



ASI Board of Directors Committee

2019/2020

Jaelyn Freeman
 Chair and Chief of Staff

Kenny Tran
 President & CEO

Mariana Rosales
 Executive Vice President

Michelle Tran
 VP of Student & University Affairs

Tim Pelayo
 CoBA Representative

Emily Borgeson
 CoBA Representative

Inique Wilson
 CHABSS Representative

Rylee Spencer
 CHABSS Representative

Shovan Vatandoust
 CHABSS Representative

Devon Kimbrough
 CHABSS Representative

Arianna Camino
 CSM Representative

Nick Lavelly
 CSM Representative

Keith Lin
 CEHHS Representative

Genessis Quezada
 CEHHS Representative

Eliese Holt
 Sustainability Representative

Gabby Garcia
 Diversity & Inclusion Representative

VACANT
 Diversity & Inclusion Representative

VACANT
 Veterans Representative

Advisors

Annie Macias
 Executive Director

Ashley Fennell
 Assoc. Director, Government Affairs
 & Initiatives

Standing Invitees

Michelle Romans
 Alumni Association Representative

Sharon Hamill
 Academic Senate Representative

Gail Cole-Avent
 President's Designee

Clint Roberts
 University CFO Designee

Cynthia Fenimore
 CSUSM Corporation

ASI Board of Directors Committee Minutes 20-16

Friday, May 8th, 2020 at 2:30pm

Meeting URL: <https://csusm.zoom.us/j/346542077>

This meeting is being facilitated through an online zoom format, consistent with the Governor's Executive Order N25-20, suspending certain open meeting law restrictions.

ITEM	SUBJECT	PRESENTER
01	Call to Order Meeting called to order at 2:35 P.M.	Jaelyn Freeman Chair & Chief of Staff
02	Roll Call Present: Kenny, Mariana, Michelle, Tim, Emily, Rylee, Shovan, Devon, Arianna, Nick, Keith, Genessis, Eliese, Gabby, Jaelyn Advisors: Annie, Ashley Standing Invitees: Michelle, Sharon Hamill, Gail Cole-Avent Absent: Inique, Clint, Cynthia	Jaelyn Freeman Chair & Chief of Staff
03	Recognition of Guests Chair will be using the Registration List	Jaelyn Freeman Chair & Chief of Staff
04 Action	Approval of Agenda Change the academic senate name to Sharon Hamill at the will of the Chair Chair approves amendments and changes by consent vote	Jaelyn Freeman Chair & Chief of Staff
05 Action	Approval of Minutes Chair approves minutes by consent vote	Jaelyn Freeman Chair & Chief of Staff
06 Information	Open Forum* Zameer: congratulates everyone who is graduating and the current graduating board. He also congratulates the next year board. He also brought up concerns he was having. Asha: Congratulates everyone. She also shouts outs and congratulates to the execs. Chris: He gave thanks the hard work that the Board has been putting in during these times. He also took the time to congratulate the incoming board. He gives regard and recognition to Annie, Ashley, and Michelle. Sharon: Behalf of the faculty she speaks on how amazing it was to work with the current board. She also hopes and encourages graduates to join in the parade. She also mentions that graduation is wherever and whoever you're with and make it special out of tough situations.	Jaelyn Freeman Chair & Chief of Staff
07 Action	Changes to Bylaws for 2020/2021 Description: Committee will vote on changes to Bylaws for 20/21. Major changes include CHABSS representatives, hours for Board members, and updated language throughout document to reflect current practices. Fiscal Impact: None See attached for documents reviewed. Ashley explains the changes to the table of the contents. She also overviewed major changes to the changes within the	Annie Macias ASI Executive Director Ashley Fennell Associate Director, Government Affairs & Initiatives Jaelyn Freeman Chair and Chief of Staff

	<p>CHABSS representatives including reducing to two based on outcome of elections vote. She also explains that clarity made in the language throughout the document. She also mentioned the addition to the Personnel Committee.</p> <p>Shovan motions to approve the changes to Bylaws for 2020/2021 Second by Genesis None opposed Motion Carries</p>	
<p>08 Information</p>	<p>Reports</p> <p>Gabby: expresses her excitement for the new board and congratulates the graduating board. Eliese: She has been working on a folder for the next board member. Congratulates everyone. Genesis: Election committee had their last meeting on Monday. Congratulates everyone. Nick: congratulates to everyone graduating and the current board. Gave advice to incoming board and how there are students first and they should have fun as well. Arianna: Committee hasn't meet often. Congratulates to everyone who is graduating. Devon: Thanked her fellow CHABBS Reps. Gave advice to the incoming board and for them don't be afraid to use their voice. Shovan: Gave advice to incoming board and that it is okay to make mistakes. He also congratulates current board. Rylee: Mentions that she might help and serve DISK. Congratulates everyone as well. Shout outs Kenny. She also expresses her excitement for the incoming board. Emily: Congratulates everyone. She also mentions that she was happy to have the opportunity to be in ASI. Tim: Congratulates the current board and expresses his excitement for the incoming board. Michelle: Kenney and Michelle still have a meeting tomorrow. She also expresses to the incoming board that for their next meeting to try and advocate for a unisex bathroom. She gave advice to Andrew and the incoming board. Emphasis her emotions to Ashley and Annie. Mariana: She want able to meet with the execs and they were able to move more funds to SEF. She had her last transition meeting with Tim. She gave thanks to the current board. To the incoming board she adds on to Michelle and expresses her excitement for them and that Mariana is always there for them. Kenny: Yesterday there was a Memorial Day zoom meeting. Adds on to Mariana and the SEF funds. He also expresses his thanks and reminiscences the year. He also expresses his excitement for the incoming board. Jaelyn: IRA committee is moving into next year. Student Grievance committee has new members. Diversity Inclusion Committee is still working hard and will work for the upcoming years. She also mentions the importance of Bylaws. She also expresses her emotions and excitement for Dylan and the incoming Board. To the current board she</p>	<p>Jaelyn Freeman Chair & Chief of Staff</p>

	gave thanks for the board for helping her and being a family by her side.	
09 Information	<p>Ratification of the 2020-2021 ASI President Description: Incoming President Michael Garrett will take oath of office from the current ASI President Kenny Tran. Fiscal Impact: None Michael took his oath of office from Kenny</p>	Kenny Tran ASI President & CEO
10 Information	<p>Ratification of the 2020-21 ASI Elected Board of Directors Members Description: The elected members will take the oath of office from 2020-2021 Fiscal Impact: None Michael administered the oath of office to the elected Board members.</p>	Michael Garrett ASI President & CEO
11 Action	<p>Approval of the 2020-21 CoBA Representative Description: 2020-2021 President Michael Garrett recommends appointment for the open position of College of Business Administration Representative. Fiscal Impact: None Michael overviewed the application timeline and process for the open positions on the ASI Board of Directors. These are his recommendations for the roles. Michael discusses his recommendation to the open position who is Jacqueline Montano.</p> <p>Jacqueline introduces herself. She also expresses her why and explains why she is a valid candidate for this position.</p> <p>Caleb moves to approve Jaqueline as the 20/21 CoBA Representative Dylan seconds None Opposed Motion carries</p>	Michael Garrett ASI President & CEO
12 Action	<p>Approval of the 2020-21 CEHHS Representative Description: 2020-2021 President Michael Garrett recommends appointment for the open position of College of Education, Health & Human Services. Fiscal Impact: None Michael discusses his recommendation to the open position to Sherry Rivas. Sherry introduces herself and expresses why she thinks she is a valid candidate for this position. Dylan moves to approve Sherry as the 20/21 CEHHS Representative Tim Seconds Motion carries</p>	Michael Garrett ASI President & CEO
13 Action	<p>Approval of the 2020-21 Student at Large for Diversity & Inclusion Representative Description: 2020-2021 President Michael Garrett recommends appointment for the open position of Student at Large Representative for Diversity & Inclusion. Fiscal Impact: None Michael discusses his recommendation to the open position to Student at Large for Diversity & Inclusion as Christopher King. Chris introduces himself and expresses why he thinks he is a valid candidate for this position.</p>	Michael Garrett ASI President & CEO

	<p>Tim moves to approve Christopher Andrew seconds Motion carries</p>	
<p>14 Action</p>	<p>Approval of the 2020-21 CSTEM Representatives Description: 2020-2021 President Michael Garrett recommends appointment for the open positions of College of Science, Technology, Engineering, and Mathematics. Fiscal Impact: None</p> <p>Michael discusses his recommendation to the open position to Ksenia Cavo. Ksenia introduces herself and expresses why she thinks she is a valid candidate for this position.</p> <p>Sarah moves to approve Ksenia as the 20/21 CSTEM Representative Caleb seconds None opposed Motion Carries</p> <p>Michael discusses his second recommendation to the open position to Sophia Aguilar. Sophia introduces herself and expresses why she thinks she is a valid candidate for this position.</p> <p>Dylan moves to approve Sophia as the 20/21 CSTEM Representative Julia seconds None opposed Motion Carries</p>	<p>Michael Garrett ASI President & CEO</p>
<p>15 Action</p>	<p>Approval of the 2020-21 Student Veterans Representative Description: 2020-2021 President Michael Garrett recommends appointment for the open position of Student Veterans Representative. Fiscal Impact: None</p> <p>Michael discusses his recommendation to the open position to Jacob Peirce. Jacob introduces himself and expresses why he thinks he is a valid candidate for this position.</p> <p>Tim moves to approve Jacob as the 20/21 Student Veterans Representative Dylan seconds None opposed Motion carries</p>	<p>Michael Garrett ASI President & CEO</p>
<p>16 Action</p>	<p>Approval of the 2020-21 Student-at-Large for Sustainability Representative Description: 2020-2021 President Michael Garrett recommends appointment for the open position of Student-at-Large for Sustainability Representative. Fiscal Impact: None</p> <p>Michael discusses his recommendation to the open position to Jenna Dotson. Jenna introduces herself and expresses why she thinks she is a valid candidate for this position.</p>	<p>Michael Garrett ASI President & CEO</p>

	Tim moves to approve Jenna as the 20/21 Student at Large for Sustainability Represe Dylan seconds Motion Carries	
17 Information	Ratification of the approved 2020-21 ASI Board of Directors Members Description: The approved incoming ASI Board of Directors members will take oath of office from 2020-2021 President Michael Garrett. Fiscal Impact: None Michael gave the oath of office to the newly approved board members into their new position.	Michael Garrett ASI President & CEO
18 Action	Approval of 2020/2021 ASI Meeting Schedule Description: Board of Directors will vote on ASI internal committees meeting schedule. Fiscal Impact: None Ashley reviews the ASI Meeting Schedule for 20/21 school year. She also discusses that this schedule will be posted on the ASI website. Tim motions to approve the 20/21 ASI meeting schedule Caleb seconds None opposed Motion Carries	Michael Garrett ASI President & CEO
19 Action	Adjournment Meeting was adjourned at will of the Chair at 3:58 P.M.	Michael Garrett ASI President & CEO

* Public comment will be limited to a maximum of 5 minutes per guest. Chair will determine allocated amount per meeting.

I, Dylan Crivello 20/21 ASI Chair & Chief of Staff, hereby certify that the above minutes were approved by Board of Directors of Associated Students, Inc., at a regularly scheduled meeting held on August 21, 2020


Dylan Crivello


Date

Ashley Fennell

From: Jaelyn Freeman
Sent: Monday, May 4, 2020 4:02 PM
To: Ashley Fennell
Subject: Guest List for last BOD meeting

Michael Garrett, Jose Lopez, Diana Cumming, Clint Roberts, Kalie Sabajo, Sara Quinn, Michelle Romans, Deborah Davis, Gail Cole-Avent, Allie Garcia, Sara Veth, Caleb Standley, Jordan Lanter, Kim Peirce, Zameer Karim, Christian Uriostegui, Julianna Gutierrez.



**ASSOCIATED STUDENTS, INC. OF
CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY SAN MARCOS
BYLAWS**

TABLE OF CONTENTS

FOREWORD 3

DEFINITIONS..... 4

ARTICLE 1: NAME AND COLORS 5

ARTICLE 2: CORPORATE LOGO 5

ARTICLE 3: NONPARTISAN ACTIVITIES 5

ARTICLE 4: PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS 5

ARTICLE 5: VISION, MISSION, AND CORE VALUES..... 6

ARTICLE 6: MEMBERSHIP 6

ARTICLE 7: GOVERNANCE 6

ARTICLE 8: EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS ELIGIBILITY 7

ARTICLE 9: EXECUTIVE OFFICERS..... 8

ARTICLE 10: POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 9

ARTICLE 11: BOARD COMPOSITION, SELECTION, DEVELOPMENT AND VACANCY 14

ARTICLE 12: POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 16

ARTICLE 13: SPECIAL OFFICERS 21

ARTICLE 14: DUTIES OF THE SPECIAL OFFICERS 21

ARTICLE 15: MEETINGS 22

ARTICLE 16: PARLIAMENTARIAN..... 23

ARTICLE 17: RESOLUTIONS 23

ARTICLE 18: COMMITTEES 23

ARTICLE 19: STANDING COMMITTEES..... 24

ARTICLE 20: OATH OF OFFICE..... 31

ARTICLE 21: RATIFICATION AND AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS 31

ARTICLE 22: ELECTIONS..... 32

ARTICLE 23: REFERENDUM 32

ARTICLE 24: RECALL AND REMOVAL OF BOARD MEMBERS 32

ARTICLE 25: ASI EMPLOYEES AND FACILITIES 34

ARTICLE 26: AUDIT 34

ARTICLE 27: MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS..... 34

ARTICLE 28: OVERSIGHT BY THE CSUSM PRESIDENT 34

ARTICLE 29: DISSOLUTION 35

ARTICLE 30: VIEWPOINT NEUTRALITY PRINCIPLES APPLICABLE TO REALLOCATION OF STUDENT FEES . 35

Jaelyn Freeman 5/7/20 1:57 PM
Deleted: 20

Jaelyn Freeman 5/7/20 1:57 PM
Deleted: 21

Jaelyn Freeman 5/7/20 1:57 PM
Deleted: 30

Jaelyn Freeman 5/7/20 1:57 PM
Deleted: 31

Jaelyn Freeman 5/7/20 1:57 PM
Deleted: 33

Jaelyn Freeman 5/7/20 1:57 PM
Deleted: 33

Jaelyn Freeman 5/7/20 1:57 PM
Deleted: 33

Jaelyn Freeman 5/7/20 1:57 PM
Deleted: 34

Jaelyn Freeman 5/7/20 1:57 PM
Deleted: 34

FOREWORD

The primary governing documents for the Associated Students, Inc. (ASI) of California State University San Marcos shall be its Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws, Policies and Procedures, and applicable provisions of the California Education Code and the California Corporations Code pertaining to a nonprofit public benefit corporation. The intention of these Bylaws is to set forth the governing documents for the operation of the Associated Student, Inc. and implement the Articles of Incorporation. The ASI's Policies and Procedures shall be consistent with the Bylaws.

Jaelyn Freeman 3/25/20 2:44 PM

Deleted: These Bylaws are intended

DEFINITIONS

The following statements clarify the expression of terms utilized throughout these Bylaws.

University: Wherever "University" is referenced, it shall mean California State University San Marcos unless otherwise indicated.

Associated Students, Inc. (ASI): The Associated Students, Inc. of California State University San Marcos shall be referred throughout as "ASI" unless otherwise indicated.

Board of Directors (BOD): The ASI Board of Directors shall be referred throughout as "BOD" unless otherwise indicated.

Fiscal Year: Wherever "fiscal year" is referenced, it shall mean the first day of July and shall terminate on the last day of June of the following year.

Viewpoint Neutrality: A process in which all funding or allocation decisions governing the allocation of mandatory student association fees are made pursuant to narrow, objective, and definite standards, and which does not involve the exercise of judgment or formation of an opinion concerning the content of the event, or is otherwise affected in any way by the viewpoint of a student organization or the proposed event.

| [Memorandum of Understanding \(MOU\)](#):

ARTICLE 1: NAME AND COLORS

SECTION 1: NAME

The official and legal name of this corporation shall be Associated Students, Inc. of California State University San Marcos, hereinafter to be referred to as ASI. Documents or publications communicating information about programs or services of ASI shall use this name or "ASI" on the cover in a readable size.

SECTION 2: COLORS

The official colors of ASI shall be Blue, Black, and White.

ARTICLE 2: CORPORATE LOGO

SECTION 1: ASI CORPORATE LOGO

The ASI corporate logo shall be the symbol shown below:



SECTION 2: ASI LOGO USE

The ASI Corporate Logo shall be used for all corporate official documents, certificates, and awards to symbolize the final approval and representation of ASI.

SECTION 3: ASI LOGO MODIFICATION

The ASI logo may be modified by the ASI Board of Directors, if approved by a majority vote of those directors in attendance at a regular or special meeting.

ARTICLE 3: NONPARTISAN ACTIVITIES

Associated Students, Inc. of California State University San Marcos is organized for charitable purposes, as a supporting organization, within the meaning of sections 501(c) (3) and 509(a)(3) of the United States Internal Revenue Code. No substantial part of the activities of ASI shall consist of carrying on propaganda, or otherwise attempting to intervene in any political campaign, including the publishing or distribution of statements on behalf of any candidate for public office.

ARTICLE 4: PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The principal place for the transaction of business of ASI shall be:

California State University San Marcos
333 South Twin Oaks Valley Road
San Marcos, California, 92096-0001

Any change of location shall be approved by a majority vote of the ASI Board of Directors.

ARTICLE 5: VISION, MISSION, AND CORE VALUES

SECTION 1: VISION STATEMENT

ASI strives to provide representation, to offer an inclusive environment, and to promote campus pride for all students at California State University San Marcos.

SECTION 2: MISSION STATEMENT

ASI serves, engages, and empowers students.

SECTION 3: CORE VALUES

Advocacy	ASI actively investigates issues and represents the student voice in the governance of the campus, community, and state.
Solidarity	ASI is committed to promoting a unified community and establishing an inclusive and supportive environment.
Integrity	ASI stays true to its commitments, maintains transparency in its actions, and upholds its accountability to students.

ARTICLE 6: MEMBERSHIP

SECTION 1: MEMBERSHIP

Membership in ASI shall be granted to all students currently enrolled at California State University San Marcos and who have paid the ASI student body fee at California State University San Marcos in any regular, limited, or special session of the University.

SECTION 2: MEMBERSHIP RIGHTS

Members shall have the right to vote in ASI elections, hold office in ASI, be employed as student employees by ASI, and participate in all activities sponsored in whole or part by ASI. Members may also petition the ASI Board of Directors and appear before the ASI Board of Directors.

SECTION 3: CONDITIONS

- 3.1 Only students enrolled at the University and in good academic and disciplinary standing with the University shall be members of the ASI.
- 3.2 Membership in ASI shall not be restricted on the basis of race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, genetic information, marital status, sex, gender, gender identity, gender expression, age, sexual orientation, and veteran status.
- 3.3 Membership in ASI shall not be transferable.

ARTICLE 7: GOVERNANCE

SECTION 1: CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

ASI has the right to self-government pursuant to the California Education Code sections 89300, 89301, and 89302, California Corporations Code section 5110 et seq. and subject to the regulations of the State of California, the Trustees of the California State University and University Rules, Regulations, and Policies.

SECTION 2: POWERS AND AUTHORITIES

The corporate powers, business, and affairs of ASI shall be exercised, controlled, and conducted

by the ASI Board of Directors and ASI Executive Officers consisting of an ASI President, an ASI Executive Vice President, an ASI Vice President of Student & University Affairs, and an ASI Chair & Chief of Staff.

ARTICLE 8: EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS ELIGIBILITY

SECTION 1: ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS

- 1.1 Students must meet the following requirements in order to be eligible for elected or appointed officers of the ASI Board of Directors:
 - 1.1.1 Shall be a member of ASI.
 - 1.1.2 Student representatives, candidates, and incumbents for office must be in good standing at CSUSM and shall not be on any academic, disciplinary, or administrative probation as may be determined by the University in accordance with University Rules and Regulations. This status must be maintained for the duration of any member's term in office.
 - 1.1.3 Maintain a minimum 2.0 CSUSM semester grade point average (GPA) in accordance with the California State University (CSU) Chancellor's Office requirements and a minimum 2.5 cumulative grade point average at CSUSM. This includes the semester prior to election or appointment to maintain the minimum CSUSM semester and cumulative CSUSM GPA requirement while in office.
 - 1.1.4 Shall be a currently enrolled student of California State University San Marcos.
 - 1.1.4.1 Undergraduate student candidates:
 - 1.1.4.1.1 Must maintain at least six (6) CSUSM units per semester while running for office and must earn at least six (6) CSUSM units per semester while holding office.
 - 1.1.4.1.2 Must have completed at least one semester prior to the election, earning a minimum of six (6) CSUSM units.
 - 1.1.4.1.3 Are allowed to earn a maximum of 150 semester units or 125 percent of the units required for their declared baccalaureate degree(s), whichever is greater. Students holding more than this number of units will no longer be eligible for office and shall be required to immediately resign from office.
 - 1.1.4.2 Graduate and Credential student candidates
 - 1.1.4.2.1 Must maintain three (3) CSUSM units per semester while running for office and must earn at least three (3) CSUSM units per semester while holding office.
 - 1.1.4.2.2 Must be currently enrolled in a minimum of three (3) CSUSM units to be eligible.
 - 1.1.4.2.3 Allowed to earn a maximum of 50 total semester units or 167 percent of the units required for their declared graduate degree(s) or credential, whichever is greater. Students holding more than this number of units will no longer be eligible for office.
- 1.1.5 Coursework for which a grade of "Incomplete", "F", or "W" is recorded shall not count toward the minimum semester unit load.
- 1.1.6 The eligibility requirements set forth herein must be maintained while in office. If at any time while in office, an officer and/or director becomes subject to probation by the University of any kind, the individual will be immediately disqualified from serving as an officer and/or director and shall be required to immediately resign from office. Shall not be a current student employee or professional employee in any ASI entity.

SECTION 2: VERIFICATION

- 2.1 Any student elected or appointed to office and/or the ASI Board of Directors shall have their eligibility requirements verified before officially taking office as set forth herein. Academic and disciplinary eligibility shall be verified each semester or when ASI is notified of any changes by the officer and/or director or by the University. If at any time while in office, an officer and/or director becomes subject to probation by the University of any kind, the individual will be immediately disqualified from serving as an officer and/or director and shall be required to immediately resign from office.
- 2.2 All GPA and units' requirements, including from other institutions, must be confirmed by CSUSM and finalized by ASI application deadline.

SECTION 3: TERMS OF OFFICE

- 3.1 ASI Executive [Officers and Student Representatives](#): Elected or appointed ASI Executive Officers [and Student Representatives](#) may serve no more than two terms in the same position and shall officially be active after the Oath of Office as set forth in ARTICLE 19.
- 3.2

Ashley Fennell 3/25/20 1:57 PM
Deleted: o

Ashley Fennell 3/25/20 1:57 PM
Deleted: Student Representatives: Elected members of the ASI Board of Directors terms shall be the length of one (1) year and shall officially be active after the Oath of Office as set forth in ARTICLE 19.

SECTION 4: CONFLICT OF INTEREST AND ANNUAL STATEMENTS

- 4.1 Any students elected or appointed to an office are required to sign and abide by the Expectations and Responsibilities Agreement, Conflict of Interest Agreement and other forms as deemed necessary and appropriate by the Executive Director, as ratified by the ASI Board of Directors.
- 4.2 The ASI Executive Director or designated ASI professional staff member shall have official responsibility for these documents and ASI shall maintain on file a current copy of each student's signed agreements.

SECTION 5: INELIGIBILITY TO SERVE (REMOVAL FROM OFFICE)

In the event that the Internal Operations Committee recommends [the removal of a Board](#), and the ASI Board of Directors concurs that [member](#) is not in compliance with any of these Bylaws, [this will result](#) resulting in [that member's](#) removal from the ASI Board of Directors, [and](#) that member shall be ineligible for appointment or election to any other ASI office as set forth in ARTICLE [24](#), Section 8 herein.

Ashley Fennell 3/25/20 1:58 PM
Deleted: to the ASI Board of Directors

Ashley Fennell 3/25/20 1:58 PM
Deleted: a

Ashley Fennell 3/25/20 1:58 PM
Deleted: of the ASI Board of Directors

Ashley Fennell 3/25/20 1:59 PM
Deleted: e

Ashley Fennell 3/25/20 1:58 PM
Deleted: ASI Board Member's

Ashley Fennell 3/25/20 1:59 PM
Deleted: 23

SECTION 6: RESIGNING FROM OFFICE

If an ASI Board member is unable to continue their duties, the ASI Board member shall immediately submit their written resignation to the ASI President. [The ASI President will follow ARTICLE 11, Section 5.3 to fill the vacancy.](#)

ARTICLE 9: EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

SECTION 1: COMPOSITION

The ASI Executive Officers of ASI shall be the ASI President, ASI Executive Vice President, ASI Vice President of Student and University Affairs, and ASI Chair and Chief of Staff.

SECTION 2: AUTHORITY MANAGEMENT

The authority and duties of the ASI Executive Officers may be amended by the ASI Board of Directors, Consistent with Corporations Code Section 5213(a).

SECTION 3: RETREAT & TRAININGS

ASI Executive Officers shall attend an officially designated ASI Executive retreat(s) in addition to the ASI Board of Directors retreat(s), planned and directed by the ASI President. ASI Staff, Employee(s), and Special Officer(s) shall not be required to attend unless determined at the sole discretion of the ASI President. An ASI Executive Officers who fails to attend any retreat, without a prior approved absence by the ASI President, shall be subject to the procedures set forth in ARTICLE 23, Section 8 herein. Notification will be executed within five (5) business days by the ASI President. The retreats are as follows:

- 3.1 ASI Executive Officer On-Boarding Process
ASI Executive Officers shall attend meetings scheduled with University Vice Presidents and various campus partners as part of the on-boarding process.
- 3.2 ASI Executive Officer Development Retreat
The ASI President may plan and direct the ASI Executive Officer Development Retreat before the first day of the Fall semester.
- 3.2 Executive Officer Mid-Year Development Retreat
At the ASI President, discretion, the ASI President shall plan and direct the ASI Executive Officer Mid-Year Development Retreat before the first day of the Spring semester.

SECTION 4: COMPENSATION

For Executive Officers to be eligible for compensation in serving in their respective offices, each must:

- 4.1 Serve a maximum of twenty (20) hours per week during the academic year (fall and spring semesters). These hours may include time spent in the ASI Board of Directors' office, in committee assignments, attending ASI and campus events, participating in the California State Student Association and other statewide advocacy, and participating in all pertinent meetings.
- 4.2 Serve up to fifteen (15) (10) hours per week during the summer session.
- 4.3 Shall be compensated with an hourly wage, priority registration, and term parking passes.
 - 4.3.1 All hours and/or effort shall be reported on timesheets and those hours worked must be in accordance with current employment authorization on file with ASI Human Resources. All time reported shall be true and correct and affirmed under penalty of perjury.
 - 4.3.2 Any overtime worked must be approved in writing by the ASI Executive Director or designee prior to being performed.

Ashley Fennell 3/25/20 2:00 PM
Deleted: minimum

Ashley Fennell 3/25/20 2:00 PM
Deleted: a minimum of ten

SECTION 5: TRANSITION PLAN

Each ASI Executive Officer shall be responsible for developing and executing a successful transition plan for the officer's successor.

SECTION 6: STRATEGIC PARTNER

Each ASI student leader serves as a strategic partner with the ASI President, ASI Board of Directors, ASI Executive Director, and ASI Professional Staff in developing and implementing ASI goals, actions, strategic priorities, and initiatives.

ARTICLE 10: POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

SECTION 1: POWERS

The ASI Executive Officers shall have the authority to administer and execute the ASI Bylaws, the ASI policies and procedures, and any directive as may be adopted by the ASI Board of Directors.

SECTION 2: EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

- 2.1 The Executive Committee shall consist of the following members:
 - 2.1.1 Members:
 - 2.1.1.1 ASI President
 - 2.1.1.2 ASI Executive Vice President
 - 2.1.1.3 ASI Vice President of Student and University Affairs
 - 2.1.1.4 ASI Chair & Chief of Staff

- 2.1.2 Advisors:
 - 2.1.2.1 ASI Executive Director
 - 2.1.2.2 ASI staff representative designated by ASI Executive Director

SECTION 3: EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

- 3.1 Maintains responsibility for the oversight of ASI. Day-to-day management of each of the functional areas of ASI is delegated to ASI professional staff, under the oversight of the Executive Director.
- 3.2 Makes recommendations for agenda items for the ASI Board of Directors meetings.
- 3.3 Acts on behalf of the ASI Board of Directors during periods when the ASI Board of Directors are not in session, including summer and winter intercessions (from the final Board meeting in April/May until the first Board meeting in August/September; from the final Board meeting in December until the first Board meeting in January/February).
- 3.4 Serves as a screening committee on matters of ASI, for referral to the ASI Board of Directors as appropriate.
- 3.5 Makes fiscal decisions for ASI limited to no more than 5% of the current annual operating budget. Any decision, which changes the organizational structure or scope of services of ASI, shall be approved by the ASI Board of Directors. All actions shall be documented in minutes available to all Board members and posted on ASI's website.
- 3.6 Recommends Policies and Procedures, including amendments thereto, to the ASI Board of Directors for their approval.
- 3.7 Recommends Policies and Procedures, including amendments thereto, to the ASI Board of Directors for their approval.
- 3.8 Reviews and makes recommendations to the ASI Board of Directors about changes to the corporate structure.
- 3.9 Aids in the development of policy, reports, and annual highlights for ASI, including but not limited to the ASI Annual Report.
- 3.10 Reviews financial and audit statements of ASI.

Ashley Fennell 5/6/20 3:28 PM
Deleted: s which change the organizational structure or scope of services of ASI

Ashley Fennell 3/25/20 2:00 PM
Deleted: 6 . Makes recommendations to the ASI Board of Directors.

SECTION 4: DUTIES OF ASI PRESIDENT

- 4.1 General: The ASI President shall:
 - 4.1.1 Serve as the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) for ASI.
 - 4.1.2 Provide direction to and supervision of the members of the ASI Board of Directors.
 - 4.1.3 Have the authority to call meetings, including special meetings, of the ASI Board of Directors and all internal ASI committees in conjunction of the Chair of that committee.
 - 4.1.4 Have the authority to appoint a President's designee for any committee assignment for which the President is designated but cannot attend.
 - 4.1.5 Appoint any Special Officer to the ASI Board of Directors, with ratification by the ASI Board of Directors.
 - 4.1.6 Serve as a delegate and alternative voting member, to the California State Student Association (CSSA), including traveling to and actively participating in CSSA plenary meetings at various CSU campuses. Travel to CSSA is dependent on budget allocations each fiscal year.
 - 4.1.7 Serve as the official spokesperson and liaison of ASI to the University administration and campus community.
 - 4.1.8 Represent California State University San Marcos at the annual Education for Leadership in Public Service Seminar hosted by the Panetta Institute at CSU Monterey Bay each summer. If the President has already participated in this seminar or is unable to attend, the President shall recommend an alternate participant to the Office of the University President.
 - 4.1.9 Ensure that actions and decisions of the ASI Board of Directors are in

Ashley Fennell 3/25/20 2:01 PM
Deleted: .

Ashley Fennell 3/25/20 2:01 PM
Deleted:

accordance with the ASI's Articles of Incorporation, these Bylaws, and its Policies and Procedures, and Resolutions and in consultation with the ASI Executive Director and/or other designated ASI professional staff members.

- 4.1.10 Plan and coordinate ASI retreats and leadership trainings, in collaboration with the designated ASI professional staff members and/or the ASI Executive Director.
- 4.1.11 Confirm the good standing and eligibility of all members of the ASI Board of Directors, in collaboration with the designated ASI professional staff member.
- 4.1.12 Initiate and oversee a process to fill vacancies on the ASI Board of Directors. Selected candidates shall be ratified by the ASI Board of Directors.
- 4.1.13 Bring college apportionment totals to the ASI Board of Directors prior to the commencement of ASI Elections process and after census is completed in order to review and approve number of positions on the ASI Board, per ARTICLE 12, SECTION 5.
- 4.1.14 Fulfill other duties as assigned in order to develop and implement ASI goals, actions, strategic priorities, and initiatives.

Jaelyn Freeman 5/7/20 1:34 PM

Deleted: 3

4.2 Meetings and Committees: The ASI President shall:

- 4.2.1 Chair the ASI Awards Committee.
- 4.2.2 Serve as a voting member and Vice Chair of the ASI Executive Committee.
- 4.2.3 Serve as a voting member and Vice Chair of the ASI Board of Directors
- 4.2.4 Serve as a voting member of the ASI Internal Operations Committee.
- 4.2.5 Serve as a voting member of the ASI Personnel Committee
- 4.2.6 Serve as a voting member on the following University committees [as applicable](#), or appoint a designee if unavailable to serve:
 - 4.2.6.1 Academic Senate
 - 4.2.6.2 University Budget Committee
 - 4.2.6.3 Student Fee Advisory Committee
 - 4.2.6.4 [CSUSM Corporation Board of Directors](#)
- 4.2.7 Attend monthly plenary meetings of the California State Student Association.
- 4.2.8 Attend meetings with the following individuals as needed:
 - 4.2.8.1 CSUSM President
 - 4.2.8.2 CSUSM Vice President of Student Affairs
 - 4.2.8.3 CSUSM Provost and Vice President of Academic Affairs.
 - 4.2.8.4 Associate Vice President of Student Life
 - 4.2.8.5 ASI Executive Director
 - 4.2.8.6 Members of the ASI Executive Committee and ASI Board of Directors
 - 4.2.8.7 Others as deemed appropriate and necessary

Jaelyn Freeman 5/7/20 1:35 PM

Deleted: 4

SECTION 5: DUTIES OF ASI EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT

- 5.1 General: The Executive Vice President shall:
 - 5.1.1 Assume the duties and responsibilities of the ASI President when absent.
 - 5.1.2 Serve as the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) for ASI.
 - 5.1.3 Review the ASI Corporate Reserves Policy and make recommendations for use of continuing appropriations to the ASI Executive Board and/or ASI Board of Directors, in consultation with the ASI Executive Director and/or designated ASI professional staff members.
 - 5.1.4 Collaborate with the ASI Executive Director and designated ASI professional staff to prepare materials for the annual ASI budget allocation process.
 - 5.1.5 Make budget and fiscal recommendations to the appropriate ASI committees, ASI Executive Committee, and/or ASI Board of Directors, in consultation with the ASI Executive Director and/or designated ASI professional staff members.
 - 5.1.6 Review the ASI annual budget with the ASI Board of Directors and appropriate ASI committees and maintain an updated copy of the approved budget.
 - 5.1.7 Present reports of the financial condition of ASI to the ASI Board of Directors at their request or when deemed necessary.

- 5.1.8 Review and approve completed requisitions, in accordance with policies and procedures.
- 5.1.9 Coordinate the ASI Leadership Fund (ALF), in collaboration with designated ASI professional staff. This includes reviewing and updating ALF guidelines at least annually, approving ALF applications which fall within funding guidelines, and tracking distributions and balance of the fund.
- 5.1.10 Track and maintain balance of the Student Emergency Fund (SEF), in collaboration with designated ASI professional staff. This includes working with the SEF work group to distribute funds and reviewing and updating SEF guidelines at least annually.
- 5.1.11 Review and make recommendations regarding ASI space utilization and facilities to the appropriate ASI committees, ASI Executive Committee, and/or ASI Board of Directors, in consultation with the ASI Executive Director and/or designated ASI professional staff members.
- 5.1.12 Ensure actions and decisions of the ASI Board of Directors are in accordance with the ASI Bylaws, resolutions, and policies.
- 5.1.13 Recommend corporate operational policies and guidelines to the ASI Executive Committee, ASI Board of Directors, and appropriate ASI committees, in consultation with the ASI President and ASI Executive Director and/or designated ASI professional staff members.
- 5.1.14 Fulfill other duties as assigned in order to develop and implement ASI goals, actions, strategic priorities, and initiatives.

5.2 Meetings and Committees: The ASI Executive Vice President shall:

- 5.2.1 Chair the ASI Internal Operations Committee.
- 5.2.2 Chair the appropriate subcommittees designated by the ASI President.
- 5.2.3 Serve as a member of the ASI Executive Committee.
- 5.2.4 Serve as a member of the ASI Board of Directors.
- 5.2.5 Serve as a member of the ASI Personnel Committee.
- 5.2.6 Serve as a member of the Joint Audit Committee.
- 5.2.7 Serve as a non-voting student representative on the University Budget Committee (UBC) [as applicable](#). The Executive Vice President assumes the voting position on UBC when the ASI President is unavailable to attend meetings, or at the designation of the ASI President.
- 5.2.8 Attend meetings with the following individuals as needed:
 - 5.2.8.1 CSUSM Vice President of Finance and Administrative Services and/or designee
 - 5.2.8.2 ASI President
 - 5.2.8.3 ASI Executive Director and/or Designated ASI professional staff members
 - 5.2.8.4 Other campus partners as deemed appropriate and necessary
 - 5.2.8.5 Other ASI Board of Directors members as deemed appropriate and necessary

SECTION 6: DUTIES OF ASI VICE PRESIDENT OF STUDENT AND UNIVERSITY AFFAIRS

- 6.1 General: The ASI Vice President of Student and University Affairs shall:
 - 6.1.1 [Serve as the official government relations liaison on behalf of ASI to the campus and local community to oversee student issues and advocacy related matters.](#)
 - 6.1.2 ~~Serve as the official delegate and voting representative to the California State Student Association (CSSA), including traveling to and actively participating in monthly CSSA plenary meetings at various CSU campuses. Travel to CSSA is dependent on budget allocations each fiscal year.~~
 - 6.1.3 Update and inform the ASI Student Advocacy Committee and/or ASI Board of Directors regarding relevant issues, policies, and legislation in the California State University (CSU) system, California State Student Association (CSSA), and California State [Legislature, which](#) have potential impact on CSU students.
 - 6.1.4 Consult with the ASI President, ASI Student Advocacy Committee, and/or Board

Ashley Fennell 3/25/20 2:02 PM

Deleted: Meet on an as-needed basis with each student representative on the ASI Board of Directors or students at large to discuss student and university issues and develop advocacy action plans as appropriate. Consultation with ASI Professional Staff is encouraged prior to meetings. .

Ashley Fennell 4/22/20 3:08 PM

Deleted: Legislature which

- of Directors as appropriate on informational and action items of CSSA.
- 6.1.5 Coordinate student participation in [campus and CSU- wide initiatives](#) that advocate for CSU students consistent with the ASI's Articles of Incorporation, these Bylaws, the rules and regulations applicable to the ASI, and the laws of the State of California.
- 6.1.6 Coordinate and ensure the success of Lobby Corps in engagement in legislative advocacy and voter education and registration.
- 6.1.7 Ensure that ASI travel policy, paperwork, and guidelines are followed when arranging travel to CSSA meetings and other off-campus meetings and events. Consult with the Designated ASI Professional Staff as needed for guidance.
- 6.1.8 Author resolutions for consideration by the ASI Board of Directors, in collaboration with Board representatives and the ASI Student Advocacy Committee.
- 6.1.9 [Meet on an as-needed basis with each student representative on the ASI Board of Directors or students at large to discuss student and university issues and develop advocacy action plans as appropriate. Consultation with ASI Professional Staff is encouraged prior to meetings.](#)
- 6.1.10 Fulfill other duties as assigned in order to develop and implement ASI goals, actions, strategic priorities, and initiatives.

Ashley Fennell 3/25/20 2:02 PM
Deleted: rallies, protests, and actions

Ashley Fennell 3/25/20 2:02 PM
Formatted: Font color: Auto

Ashley Fennell 3/25/20 2:03 PM
Deleted: 9

- 6.2 Meetings and Committees: The ASI Vice President of Student and University Affairs shall:
 - 6.2.1 Chair the ASI Student Advocacy Committee.
 - 6.2.2 Serve as a member of the ASI Executive Committee.
 - 6.2.3 Serve as a member of the ASI Board of Directors.
 - 6.2.4 Serve as a member of the ASI Personnel Committee.
 - 6.2.5 Serve as a member of the California State Student Association (CSSA).
 - 6.2.6 Serve as the student designee on the City of San Marcos School and Neighborhood Relations Commission, including consulting with the CSUSM administrator designee on the Commission as needed.
 - 6.2.7 Attend Academic Senate meetings. The Vice President of Student and Academic Affairs assumes the voting senator position on the Academic Senate when the ASI President is unavailable to attend meetings, or at the designation of the ASI President.
 - 6.2.8 Serve as a representative on the Student Fee Advisory Committee (SFAC) convened by the CSUSM Vice President of Student Affairs [should the ASI President be unable to attend.](#)
 - 6.2.9 Entertain or attend meetings with the following individuals as needed:
 - 6.2.9.1 CSUSM Vice President of Student Affairs and/or Dean of Students
 - 6.2.9.2 CSUSM Provost and Vice President for Academic Affairs
 - 6.2.9.3 ASI President
 - 6.2.9.4 ASI Executive Director and/or Designated ASI Professional Staff
 - 6.2.9.5 [Members of the CSUSM Office of Community Engagement](#)
 - 6.2.9.6 [Other campus partners as deemed appropriate and necessary](#)
 - 6.2.9.7 [Other ASI Board of Directors members as deemed appropriate and necessary](#)

Jaelyn Freeman 5/7/20 1:40 PM
Deleted:

SECTION 7: DUTIES OF THE ASI CHAIR AND CHIEF OF STAFF

- 7.1 General: The Chair & Chief of Staff shall:
 - 7.1.1 Have working knowledge of all these Bylaws, [ASI Board of Directors processes](#), the ASI's Policies and Procedures, and any other Rules and Regulations that may be applicable to the ASI.
 - 7.1.2 Have proficiency in running meetings using Robert's Rules of Order, Newly Revised.

Jaelyn Freeman 5/7/20 1:40 PM
Deleted: ,

Jaelyn Freeman 5/7/20 1:43 PM
Deleted:

- 7.1.3 Call for agenda items for the ASI Board of Directors, ASI Executive Committee, [ASI Personnel Committee](#), and other committees as designated by the ASI President.
 - 7.1.4 Distribute and post finalized agendas for the ASI Board of Directors, ASI Executive Committee, [ASI Personnel Committee](#), and other assigned committees as required by the Gloria Romero Open Meeting Act.
 - 7.1.5 Approve all meeting minutes of the ASI Board of Directors, Executive Committee, and other assigned committees.
 - 7.1.6 Serve as principle aide for the ASI Executive Officers.
 - 7.1.7 Serve as lead to the student representatives on the ASI Board of Directors, meeting regularly with each representative to ensure completion of office hours, attendance at committee meetings, and outreach to constituents.
 - 7.1.8 [Work in collaboration with ASI Executive Vice President to appoint ASI Board of Directors members and student representatives](#) to internal ASI Committees and University Committees, as requested by the Academic Senate, Office of the University President, and other campus partners. Appointees to the [ASI Elections Committee](#) must be ratified by the ASI Board of Directors.
 - 7.1.9 Remove student representatives from ASI and University Committees when they fail to meet expectations of committee attendance and participation. [ASI Board of Directors members who fail to meet requirements of position will be brought to Internal Operations Committee for removal per ARTICLE 24, Section 8.](#)
 - 7.1.10 Assist the ASI President in organizational matters related to the ASI Board of Directors and other ASI committees as appropriate.
 - 7.1.11 Assist with the recruitment of students and the organization of interviews for open and/or appointed positions on the ASI Board of Directors.
 - 7.1.12 Assist in maintaining transition binders for the ASI Board of Directors.
 - 7.1.13 Fulfill other duties as assigned in order to develop and implement ASI goals, actions, strategic priorities, and initiatives.
- 7.2 Meetings and Committees: The Chair & Chief of Staff shall:
- 7.2.1 Attend meetings with the following individuals as needed:
 - 7.2.1.1 ASI President
 - 7.2.1.2 ASI Executive Officers
 - 7.2.1.3 ASI Executive Director and/or Designated ASI Professional Staff
 - 7.2.1.4 Members of the ASI Board of Directors
 - 7.2.2 Chair the ASI Board of Directors
 - 7.2.3 Chair the ASI Executive Committee
 - 7.2.4 [Chair of the ASI Personnel Committee](#)
 - 7.2.5 [Chair other committees as designated by the ASI President.](#)

Jaelyn Freeman 5/7/20 1:43 PM
Deleted:

Jaelyn Freeman 5/7/20 1:43 PM
Deleted:

Ashley Fennell 3/25/20 2:04 PM
Deleted: Appoint student

ARTICLE 11: BOARD COMPOSITION, SELECTION, DEVELOPMENT AND VACANCY

SECTION 1: COMPOSITION

The ASI Board of Directors shall be composed of the voting members hereinafter to be called Executive Officers, Special Officers, and Representatives.

SECTION 2: DIRECTORS, ADVISORS AND STANDING REPRESENTATIVES

- 2.1 Voting Members:
 - 2.1.1 Chair & Chief of Staff
 - 2.1.2 ASI President
 - 2.1.3 Executive Vice President
 - 2.1.4 Vice President of Student and University Affairs
 - 2.1.5 College of Humanities, Arts, Behavioral, and Social Sciences Representatives
 - 2.1.6 [College of Business Administration Representatives](#)

Ashley Fennell 3/25/20 2:05 PM
Deleted: Chair other committees as designated by the ASI President. -

Ashley Fennell 3/25/20 2:05 PM
Deleted: Serve as a member of the ASI Personnel Committee -

Jaelyn Freeman 5/7/20 1:44 PM
Deleted: 2.1.6 . College

- 2.1.7 College of Education, Health, and Human Services Representatives
- 2.1.8 College of Science, Technology, Engineering, and Mathematics Representatives
- 2.1.9 Student-at-Large Representatives for Diversity and Inclusion
- 2.1.10 Student-at-Large Representative for Sustainability
- 2.1.11 Veterans Student Representative

Ashley Fennell 4/13/20 3:28 PM
Deleted:

2.2 Non-Voting Members:

- Advisors:
- 2.2.1 ASI Executive Director
 - 2.2.2 ASI staff representative designated by the Executive Director

2.3 Standing Representatives:

- 2.3.1 CSUSM President or Designee
- 2.3.2 CSUSM Vice President of Finance and Administrative Services or Designee
- 2.3.3 Alumni Association Representative
- 2.3.4 Academic Senate Chair or Designee
- 2.3.5 CSUSM Corporation Staff Representative

SECTION 3: SELECTION

- 3.1 The ASI Board of Directors, excluding any Special Officers, shall be elected by a vote of the members of ASI as outlined in Article 6 of these ASI Bylaws. The General Election is to be held a week prior to spring break, each spring term, unless otherwise stipulated in these ASI Bylaws.
- 3.1.1 All Executive Officers, and each Student Representative-at-Large shall be elected by the student body at large.
 - 3.1.2 All College Representatives shall be elected only by their respective college constituency.
 - 3.1.3 Standing Representatives shall be appointed by a designator (i.e., Alumni Association appointing a representative).
- 3.2 Special Officers shall be appointed by the ASI President and not elected as set forth in ARTICLE 13, Section 2 herein.
- 3.3 The ASI Board of Directors may recommend additional rules, regulations, and procedures for ASI Elections to the ASI Elections Committee.

Jaelyn Freeman 3/25/20 2:59 PM
Deleted: members of ASI in

Jaelyn Freeman 3/25/20 3:00 PM
Deleted: t

Jaelyn Freeman 3/25/20 3:01 PM
Deleted: excluding any Special Officers,

SECTION 4: TRAINING AND LEADERSHIP DEVELOPMENT

All voting members of the ASI Board of Directors are required to attend mandatory retreats. ASI staff attendance at ASI Board of Directors trainings shall be at the ASI President's discretion, with the exception of the All-ASI Development Retreat and ASI Mid-Year Retreat. The dates shall be approved by incoming ASI Board of Directors and are subject to change by a unanimous vote. A Board member who fails to attend any retreat and/or training will be subject to removal as provided by ARTICLE 24, Section 8 herein. The ASI President will notify the ASI Board member of potential removal within five (5) business days following a retreat or training. The mandatory retreats and trainings are as follows:

4.1 ASI Board of Directors Transition Process and Training

Following the election of the new ASI Board of Directors, a mandatory transitional process and training shall be held at least two (2) weeks prior to the transition of formal authority. All incumbent Board members and Board member-elects shall meet during this transition time to further their knowledge of ASI and their respective positions. Each officer-elect, representative-elect, incumbent officer and incumbent representative shall attend the last ASI Board of Director's meeting of the spring semester. The Oath of Office shall be administered at this ASI Board of Director's meeting. Official Authority of the Members-elect of the ASI Board of Directors shall commence with outgoing officers relieved of their duties after the oath.

Jaelyn Freeman 3/25/20 3:06 PM
Deleted: enact

Jaelyn Freeman 3/25/20 3:08 PM
Deleted: and as may be recommended by the ASI Elections Committee.

Jaelyn Freeman 3/25/20 3:09 PM
Deleted: , planned and directed by the ASI President

Jaelyn Freeman 3/25/20 3:13 PM
Deleted: determined by the past ASI President prior to elections. Dates are subject to change by a unanimous vote by the affected ASI Board of Directors.

Jaelyn Freeman 3/25/20 3:16 PM
Deleted: 3

Jaelyn Freeman 3/25/20 3:18 PM
Deleted: Board member may be notified by the ASI President of a retreat within five (5) business days.

- 4.2 ASI Board of Directors Training
A mandatory training shall be held the week prior to all-ASI development training & retreat. All Board members will use this time to further their knowledge of ASI, Board of Directors, and their respective positions. Each officer shall receive training dates in the elections packet or during application process.
- 4.3 All ASI Development Retreat
A mandatory retreat shall be held during the week prior to the start of the fall semester. Mandatory attendees shall include all members of the ASI Board of Directors as well as other student and staff employees of ASI. Specific dates of this retreat shall be determined prior to the ASI General Election and included in election materials.
- 4.4 ASI Board of Directors Mid-Year Development Retreat
A mandatory retreat shall be held within the first two weeks of the beginning of the spring semester. Mandatory attendees shall include all members of the ASI Board of Directors.

SECTION 5: VACANCY

Any vacancy in an elected or appointed position on the ASI Board of Directors shall be filled by special election or appointment, in accordance with the following:

- 5.1 Any person appointed or elected shall meet the qualifications as stated in ARTICLE 8, Section 1, Eligibility, and any other qualifications as stated in these ASI Bylaws and any other provision as set forth herein for a vacant position.
- 5.2 Any person appointed or elected to fill a vacancy shall hold the position for the unexpired term of their predecessor and shall be subject to the power of removal or recall.
- 5.3 The ASI President shall announce vacancies and publicly solicit applications in such forums as the student newspaper and any other campus media in compliance with the California Code of Regulations, Title 5. The ASI President shall determine the application period, which shall be a minimum of two (2) weeks, in addition to the frequency and method of advertisement. Once this has been established, the ASI President shall report the process to fill vacancy to the ASI Board of Directors.
- 5.4 Applications shall be screened, and interviews shall be conducted using criteria appropriate for fulfilling the requirements of the vacant position, as determined by the ASI President, and shall coordinate the interview process in coordination with ASI Professional Staff.
- 5.5 In the event of a vacancy of the ASI President, succession shall be given to the ASI Executive Vice President. The vacant Executive Vice President office shall be filled in accordance with this section.
- 5.6 In the event both the President and Executive Vice President offices are vacant, a special election shall be conducted. The ASI Board of Directors shall appoint an interim President until the special election has concluded and the person has taken the Oath of Office.
- 5.7 The resigning member shall not be eligible for reapplication to a different ASI Board of Director Position for that academic year unless the individual is assuming the role of an Executive Officer position.

ARTICLE 12: POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE ASI BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SECTION 1: POWERS

The ASI Board of Directors shall have the authority to determine the goals, policies and procedures, and governing practices of ASI.

SECTION 2: GOVERNANCE AUTHORITY

The ASI Board of Directors shall have the power and authority to do the following:

- 2.1 Govern the operation of ASI and approve policies and procedures in accordance with the Articles of Incorporation, these Bylaws, the laws of the State of California, and the rules, regulations and policies of the Trustees and the Chancellor of the California State

University, and the California State University San Marcos. The ASI Board of Directors shall have the authority to amend the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws to implement any law and/or regulations that may affect the ASI.

- 2.2 Adopt policies that carry out the intent of these Bylaws with specific rules, procedures, and position descriptions.
- 2.3 Pass Resolutions by a majority vote of the voting membership.
- 2.4 Incur indebtedness and set a schedule of charges for the conduct of business. Terms and the amounts shall be entered in the meeting minutes of the ASI Board of Directors.
- 2.5 Approve and terminate the services of professional agents such as attorneys and/or accountants and determine their scope of work as may be deemed necessary.
- 2.6 Keep records of minutes noting all the acts and proceedings of ASI.
- 2.7 Prepare, amend, and present the Annual Budget of ASI to the President of the University.
- 2.8 Take other action as may be authorized and directed by law.
- 2.10 Receive and consider reports from all officers of ASI, advisors of ASI, and any other agent or employee deemed necessary.

SECTION 3: DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

- 3.1 The ASI Board of Directors meetings shall serve as a venue for voicing student and University community opinions and ideas, taking action on items as deemed appropriate.
- 3.2 The ASI Board of Directors shall make recommendations to the University President, based on informed and strategic advocacy on behalf of students.
- 3.3 The ASI Board of Directors shall consider Resolutions. Approval of resolutions is based on a majority vote of the voting membership.
- 3.4 Upon review of the recommendations by the Internal Operations Committee, the ASI Board of Directors shall approve any changes to the ASI's Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws.
- 3.5 Upon review of the recommendations by the Internal Operations Committee, the ASI Board of Directors shall annually approve the ASI Master Budget. The ASI Board of Directors shall also approve any mid-year changes to the budget in excess of 5% of the annual budget.
- 3.6 The ASI Board of Directors shall annually review the ASI's United States Internal Revenue Service 990 Tax Forms.
- 3.7 The ASI Board of Directors shall ratify new members of the ASI Board of Directors, as well as any Committee members required by University process.
- 3.8 The ASI Board of Directors shall support and advocate on behalf of all ASI programs and activities.
- 3.9 Representation:
 - 3.9.1 Represent views, issues, and concerns of the members of their constituency.
 - 3.9.2 Commit to creating a sustainable campus environment for the student population.
 - 3.9.3 Represent the student body at large in the decisions and discussions of the ASI Board of Directors.
- 3.10 Constituent Outreach:
 - 3.10.1 Seek out the concerns, desires, and opinions of the general student body.
 - 3.10.2 Present resolutions to the ASI Board of Directors regarding any issues that pertain to the general student body and which ASI may have the power to address.
 - 3.10.3 Ensure the activities, actions, and policies of ASI are implemented in the interests of the students of California State University San Marcos and/or ASI.

Ashley Fennell 4/13/20 3:35 PM

Deleted: <#>Provide an ASI Election Packet by which the General Election and any Special Election are to be called and conducted. -

3.10.4 Work with proper administration to comply with and promote mandated sustainable practices within ASI and the University as a whole.

3.11 Budget:

3.11.1 Maintain responsibility for expenditures of their respective budget and practice proper spending based on college-related [or constituent- related representation and outreach](#) efforts.

3.11.2 In coordination with the designated ASI Professional Staff assess their budget annually and revise as necessary.

3.12 Committees:

3.12.1 [Board members](#) shall have committee participation duties on committees within ASI committees and within the University committees.

3.13 ASI and General Student Representation Visibility

3.13.1 Participate in ASI events and activities promoting ASI programs and services to the CSUSM student body.

3.13.2 Utilize such events to promote service as an ASI Representative.

3.13.3 Recommended to attend and/or participate in at least three (3) ASI events or programs per semester.

SECTION 4: COMPENSATION

4.1 Board members are recommended to serve a minimum of ~~ten (-10)~~ hours per week within the following breakdown: A minimum of two (2) hours may be served in the ASI Board of Director's office within posted business hours of the ASI office. These hours may be completed on two (2) separate days of the week. Additionally, ~~other~~ hours may be served on committees, ~~student~~ representation tasks, and ~~working at~~ ASI and other campus organization events. This includes attendance at ASI Board of Directors meetings and ~~committee~~ assignments.

4.2 Board members shall receive priority registration, ~~semester~~ scholarship, and a semester University parking pass ~~while in office~~. If the Board member already purchased a University parking pass, a meal plan card, or University Bookstore gift card shall be given to the Board member.

SECTION 5: COLLEGE REPRESENTATION

5.1 In the event that the University officially establishes a new college that college shall receive one (1) seat on the ASI Board of Directors by default.

SECTION 6: DUTIES OF THE COLLEGE REPRESENTATIVES

As elected members of the ASI Board of Directors, College Representatives (colleges as identified in CSUSM campus catalog) have an affirmative duty to fulfill their entrusted obligations to the students of California State University San Marcos and ASI, including the following:

6.1 Representative Obligation:

6.1.1 Represent views, issues and concerns of the members of their constituency.

6.1.2 Address issues of inequity and social injustice that affect their constituents.

6.1.3 Commit to creating an inclusive environment within their college.

6.1.4 Represent their respective college constituents in the decisions and discussions of the ASI Board of Directors [as well as in appointed committees and spaces](#).

6.1.5 [Fulfill other duties as assigned in order to develop and implement ASI goals, actions, strategic priorities, and initiatives.](#)

Ashley Fennell 4/15/20 2:49 PM
Deleted: College Representatives

Ashley Fennell 4/15/20 2:49 PM
Deleted: 3.12.2 . Participate on two (2) University Committees; or participate on the ASI Internal Operations Committee and one University Committee. - ... [1]

Ashley Fennell 4/13/20 3:36 PM
Deleted: five

Ashley Fennell 4/13/20 3:36 PM
Deleted: 5

Ashley Fennell 4/15/20 2:50 PM
Deleted: a minimum of three (3)

Ashley Fennell 4/15/20 2:50 PM
Deleted: college

Ashley Fennell 4/15/20 2:51 PM
Deleted: attending

Ashley Fennell 4/15/20 2:52 PM
Deleted: ASI internal

Ashley Fennell 4/15/20 2:54 PM
Deleted: APPORTIONMENT

Ashley Fennell 4/15/20 2:54 PM
Formatted: Indent: Hanging: 0.5"

Ashley Fennell 4/15/20 2:53 PM
Deleted: The number of College Representative seats on the ASI Board of Directors for each college shall be determined by the size of each college and formulated by the ASI Board of Directors and shall be reviewed annually during the fall semester and after the University reports the enrollment census numbers.

Jaelyn Freeman 5/7/20 1:47 PM
Deleted: - ... [2]

Ashley Fennell 4/15/20 2:54 PM
Deleted: and as student population increases within that college, reapportionment of that college shall comply with the same process aforementioned in this section.

Jaelyn Freeman 5/7/20 1:47 PM
Deleted: - ... [3]

Ashley Fennell 4/15/20 2:54 PM
Deleted: The ASI President and ASI Executive Director shall bring this for review and approval - ... [4]

Jaelyn Freeman 5/7/20 1:47 PM
Deleted:

Ashley Fennell 4/15/20 3:12 PM
Formatted: Font color: Text 1

- 6.2 Constituency Outreach and Meetings:
 - 6.2.1 Consult and cooperate with all organizations within their constituency and seek out the concerns, desires, and opinions of their respective college, inclusive of all majors within their college.
 - 6.2.2 Present resolutions to the ASI Board of Directors for consideration regarding any issues that pertain to their respective college and which ASI may have the power to address.
 - 6.2.3 Ensure the activities, actions, and policies of ASI are implemented in the interests of the students of California State University San Marcos and/or ASI.
 - 6.2.4 Serve as liaisons to student organizations with affiliations to their college.
 - 6.2.5 [Meet with the appropriate student organizations, classes, and campus partners to present issues and concerns of their college constituents.](#)
 - 6.2.6 [Assist in college graduation and recognition ceremonies, as requested.](#)

Ashley Fennell 4/15/20 3:10 PM
Deleted: t

- 6.3 Committees:
 - 6.3.1 [Board members shall have committee participation duties on committees within ASI committees and within the University committees.](#)

Jaelyn Freeman 5/7/20 1:47 PM
Deleted: 5

Ashley Fennell 4/15/20 3:12 PM
Deleted: .

- 6.4 College Meetings:
 - 6.4.1 Meet with the appropriate College Dean to present issues and concerns of their college constituents. [Work to address student concerns and issues.](#)
 - 6.4.2 [Meet with the appropriate department Chairs to present issues and concerns of their college constituents.](#)
 - 6.4.3 Collaborate [within retrospective college](#) to host at least one (1) event or effort to [aid in student outreach or education](#) related to the college per semester.

Ashley Fennell 4/15/20 3:11 PM
Deleted: Constituency Meetings: - ... [5]

Ashley Fennell 4/15/20 2:55 PM
Deleted: 4

Ashley Fennell 4/15/20 2:56 PM
Deleted: Dean

Ashley Fennell 4/13/20 3:37 PM
Deleted: Serve on the Dean's Advisory Board as the student representative.

Ashley Fennell 4/15/20 2:56 PM
Formatted: Strikethrough

Ashley Fennell 4/15/20 2:58 PM
Deleted: with the College Dean

Ashley Fennell 4/15/20 2:56 PM
Deleted: 5

Ashley Fennell 4/15/20 3:13 PM
Deleted: University issues, concerns, Dean Meetings and University activities, committee service, and ASI events and activities

- 6.5 Reports:
 - Submit a Report as a time specified by the ASI Chair & Chief of Staff to the ASI Board of Directors about [representative obligations, consistency outreach and meetings, committees, and college meetings as noted above.](#) The report shall be posted on the ASI website.

SECTION 7: DUTIES OF THE STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE AT LARGE FOR SUSTAINABILITY

As an elected member of the ASI Board of Directors, the Student Representative at Large for Sustainability shall have the following duties and responsibilities:

- 7.1 Representative Obligation:
 - 7.1.1 Represent views, issues, and concerns of the members of their constituency.
 - 7.1.2 Commit to creating a sustainable campus environment for the student population [and campus community.](#)
 - 7.1.3 Represent the student body at large in the decisions and discussions of the ASI Board of Directors [as well as in appointed committees and spaces.](#)
 - 7.1.4 [Fulfill other duties as assigned in order to develop and implement ASI goals, actions, strategic priorities, and initiatives](#)

Ashley Fennell 4/15/20 3:05 PM
Deleted: .

- 7.2 Constituency Outreach and Meetings:
 - 7.2.1 Seek out the concerns, desires, and opinions of the general student body.
 - 7.2.2 Present resolutions to the ASI Board of Directors regarding any issues that pertain to the general student body and which ASI may have the power to

Ashley Fennell 4/15/20 3:25 PM
Deleted: t

address.

- 7.2.3 Ensure the activities, actions, and policies of ASI are implemented in the interests of the students of California State University San Marcos and/or the ASI.
- 7.2.4 Work with proper administration to comply with and promote mandated sustainable practices within ASI and the University as a whole.
- 7.2.5 Meet with the appropriate campus partners and student organizations to present issues and concerns of their constituents as they relate to sustainability.
- 7.2.6 Serve on committees related to sustainability efforts to represent the student perspective, when applicable.

7.4 Committees

- 7.4.1 Board members shall have committee participation duties on committees within ASI committees and within the University committees.
- 7.4.2 Serve as Chair for Sustainability Projects Funding Committee

7.5 Reports:

- 7.5.1 Submit a Report as a time specified by the ASI Chair & Chief of Staff to the ASI Board of Directors about representative obligations, consistency outreach and meetings, committees, and meetings as noted above. The report shall be posted on the ASI website.

SECTION 8: DUTIES OF THE STUDENT REPRESENTATIVES AT LARGE FOR DIVERSITY AND INCLUSION

As elected members of the ASI Board of Directors, the Student Representatives at Large for Diversity and Inclusion will have an affirmative duty to fulfill their entrusted obligations to the students of California State University San Marcos and the ASI, including the following:

8.1 Representative Obligation:

- 8.1.1 Represent views, issues, and concerns of the members of their constituency.
- 8.1.2 Assess, advocate for, and educate on the issues and needs of underrepresented and underserved campus communities in the discussions and decisions of the ASI Board of Directors.
- 8.1.3 Address issues of inequity and social injustice that affect their constituents.
- 8.1.4 Commit to creating an inclusive campus climate at CSUSM.

8.2 Constituency Outreach and Meetings:

- 8.2.1 Seek to understand the concerns, desires, needs, and opinions of the underrepresented and underserved communities of CSUSM.
- 8.2.2 Present resolutions to the ASI Board of Directors for consideration on social justice issues that pertain to the general student body and which ASI may have the power to address.
- 8.2.3 Ensure the activities, actions, and policies of ASI are implemented in the interests of the students of California State University, San Marcos and/or ASI.
- 8.2.4 Meet with ASI and University staff, administrators, faculty, and students regarding pertinent social justice and/or campus climate issues. Such as the following offices but not limited to: The Office of Inclusive Excellence, Cross Cultural Center, LGBTQA Pride Center, Gender Equity Center, Latin@ Center, Black Student Center, Disability Support Services, Educational Opportunity Program (EOP), National Latino Research Center, DREAMers Resource Office, Project Rebound, Global Education, American Language and Culture Institute, TRIO Student Support Services, the College Assistance Migrant Program

Ashley Fennell 4/23/20 3:07 PM
Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.5"

Ashley Fennell 4/23/20 3:07 PM
Deleted: 3

Ashley Fennell 4/23/20 3:07 PM
Deleted: 1

Ashley Fennell 4/23/20 3:07 PM
Deleted: 3

Ashley Fennell 4/23/20 3:07 PM
Deleted: 2

Ashley Fennell 4/23/20 3:07 PM
Deleted: 1

Ashley Fennell 4/15/20 3:16 PM
Deleted: 1

Ashley Fennell 4/15/20 3:16 PM
Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", First line: 0"

Ashley Fennell 4/15/20 3:16 PM
Deleted: 4

Ashley Fennell 4/15/20 3:15 PM
Deleted: Submit a Report as a time specified by the ASI Chair & Chief of Staff to the ASI Board of Directors about University issues, concerns, Dean Meetings and University activities, committee service, and ASI events and activities. The report shall be posted by the ASI on its website.

Jaelyn Freeman 5/7/20 1:48 PM
Deleted: 1

Jaelyn Freeman 5/7/20 1:48 PM
Deleted: 1

Ashley Fennell 4/15/20 3:15 PM
Deleted: 1

Ashley Fennell 4/15/20 3:26 PM
Formatted: Indent: Left: 1"

Ashley Fennell 4/15/20 3:19 PM
Deleted: 1

Jaelyn Freeman 5/7/20 1:49 PM
Deleted: limited

Jaelyn Freeman 5/7/20 1:49 PM
Deleted: 1

(CAMP), Pathways to Academic Success and Opportunities (PASO), ACE Scholars Services, California Indian Culture and Sovereignty Center, and others as deemed appropriate.

8.3 Committees

8.3.1 Board members shall have committee participation duties on committees within ASI committees and within the University committees.

8.4 Reports:

8.4.1 Submit a Report as a time specified by the ASI Chair & Chief of Staff to the ASI Board of Directors about representative obligations, consistency outreach and meetings, committees, and college meetings as noted above. The report shall be posted on the ASI website.

ARTICLE 13: SPECIAL OFFICERS

SECTION 1: COMPOSITION

The ASI may have Special Officers such as the Veterans Student Representative.

SECTION 2: SPECIAL OFFICER SELECTION

At the ASI President's sole discretion, the ASI President shall appoint all Special Officers subject to approval by the ASI Board of Directors at a regular or special meeting by an affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the members of the ASI Board of Directors.

SECTION 3: AUTHORITY MANAGEMENT

The ASI Board of Directors shall have the authority and responsibility to specify the duties of all Special Officers.

ARTICLE 14: DUTIES OF THE SPECIAL OFFICERS

SECTION 1: DUTIES OF THE VETERANS STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE

As an appointed member of the ASI Board of Directors, the Veterans Student Representative will have an affirmative duty to fulfill their entrusted obligations to the students of California State University San Marcos and ASI, including the following:

- 1.1 Representative Obligation:
 - 1.1.1 Represent views, issues, and concerns of the members of their constituency.
 - 1.1.2 Assess, advocate for, and educate on the issues and needs of students and campus communities in the discussions and decisions of the ASI Board of Directors.
 - 1.1.3 Commit to creating an inclusive and welcoming campus climate at CSUSM for our veteran and military student population.
- 1.2 Constituency Outreach and Meetings:
 - 1.2.1 Seek to understand the concerns, desires, needs, and opinions of veterans and active duty military communities of CSUSM.
 - 1.2.2 Present resolutions to the ASI Board of Directors for consideration on issues that pertain to military/veteran students in which ASI may have the power to address.
 - 1.2.3 Ensure the activities, actions, and policies of ASI are implemented in the interests of the students of California State University, San Marcos and/or ASI.
 - 1.2.4 Meet with ASI and University staff, administrators, faculty, and students regarding pertinent issues. Staff and administrators may include but is not limited to the Veterans Center Director, Veterans Services Coordinator, Director of Disability Support Services, Chief Diversity Officer and Associated Vice

Ashley Fennell 4/15/20 3:19 PM

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.5", Hanging:

Ashley Fennell 4/15/20 3:17 PM

Formatted: Indent: First line: 0.5"

Ashley Fennell 4/15/20 3:17 PM

Deleted: 4

Jaelyn Freeman 5/7/20 1:50 PM

Deleted: 1

Ashley Fennell 4/15/20 3:15 PM

Deleted: Submit a Report as a time specified by the ASI Chair & Chief of Staff to the ASI Board of Directors about University issues, concerns, Dean Meetings and University activities, committee service, and ASI events and activities. The report shall be posted by the ASI on its website.

Jaelyn Freeman 5/7/20 1:50 PM

Deleted: E

Jaelyn Freeman 5/7/20 1:50 PM

Deleted: .

Ashley Fennell 4/15/20 3:21 PM

Deleted: t

Ashley Fennell 4/23/20 3:09 PM

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.5", Hanging:

Ashley Fennell 4/23/20 3:09 PM

Deleted: .

President of Office of Inclusive Excellence, and others as deemed appropriate.

1.3 Committees

1.3.1 Board members shall have committee participation duties on committees within ASI committees and within the University committees.

1.4 Reports:

1.4.1 Submit a Report as a time specified by the ASI Chair & Chief of Staff to the ASI Board of Directors about representative obligations, consistency outreach and meetings, committees, and college meetings as noted above. The report shall be posted on the ASI website.

Ashley Fennell 4/15/20 3:20 PM

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.5"

Ashley Fennell 4/15/20 3:21 PM

Deleted: 1.5 . Reports: .

ARTICLE 15: MEETINGS

SECTION 1: MEETING PROCEDURES

- 1.1 All meetings of the ASI Executive Committee, Board of Directors, Standing Committees, and Ad Hoc Committees shall be conducted in accordance with all applicable laws of the State of California including but not limited to the Gloria Romero Open Meetings Act of 2000 as contained in the California Education Code section 89305 et seq. All ASI meetings shall be conducted by the current edition of *Robert's Rules of Order, Revised*. All meetings of the ASI Executive Committee, ASI Board of Directors, ASI Standing Committees, and ASI Ad Hoc Committees shall be open and held in public, and all persons shall be permitted to attend meetings except for closed sessions held in accordance with California Education Code section 89307.
- 1.2 Written notice of all ASI Executive Committee, ASI Board of Directors, ASI Standing Committees, and ASI Ad Hoc Committees meetings shall be posted at least seventy-two (72) hours prior to the commencement of the meeting. An agenda containing a brief description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed, including closed session items shall be included in the notice.
- 1.3 The ASI Executive Committee shall act on Associated Students, Inc. matters and fulfill the official powers of the ASI Board of Directors during summer sessions and winter intercession.
- 1.4 All actions of ASI Executive Committee, ASI Board of Directors, ASI Standing Committees, and ASI Ad Hoc Committees shall be recorded in meeting minutes.

SECTION 2: CLOSED SESSION

The ASI Board of Directors and/or any ASI Committees can add closed session items to the agenda for a meeting or a portion of a meeting in which the meeting and/or item is closed to all but the members of said committee including advisors and standing Representatives.

SECTION 3: SPECIAL AND EMERGENCY MEETINGS

Special meetings of the ASI Board of Directors, ASI Executive Committee or ASI Committees may be called at any time by the presiding officer of the respective committee or by a majority of the membership of the respective committee in accordance with California Education Code section 89306.5. Emergency meetings may only be called in accordance with California Education Code section 89306.5.

SECTION 4: AGENDAS AND MINUTES

- 4.1 The Chair of all ASI Committees shall prepare agendas and minutes, in coordination with designated ASI professional staff.
- 4.2 Agendas and minutes for the ASI Board of Directors and ASI Executive Committee shall

- be kept via hardcopy and electronically.
- 4.2 Agendas and minutes for all other ASI Committees shall be kept electronically.
- 4.3 Every agenda for all ASI Board of Directors and committee meetings at minimum shall include:
- Call to order
 - Roll Call
 - Recognition of Guests
 - Approval of Agenda
 - Approval of Minutes (if applicable)
 - Open Forum
 - Any applicable agenda items with brief descriptions (action, information, discussion, reference materials, presentation)
 - [Reports](#)
 - Announcements
 - Adjournment

SECTION 5: QUORUM

A quorum of the ASI Board of Directors, ASI Executive Committee, ASI Standing Committees, and/or ASI Ad Hoc Committees shall be fifty-percent plus one voting members in attendance.

SECTION 6: VOTING

Members of the ASI Board of Directors shall have one (1) vote each. Members of ASI Committees shall have one (1) vote each. Standing Representatives and/or advisors are not voting members of the ASI Board of Directors, Executive Committee, Standing Committees, or Ad Hoc Committees.

SECTION 7: USE OF PROXIES

Proxies shall not be allowed for any committee including but not limited to the ASI Board of Directors, Executive Committee, Standing Committees, and any Ad Hoc Committee.

ARTICLE 16: PARLIAMENTARIAN

The ASI Chair and Chief of Staff may appoint a Parliamentarian with duties consistent with the current edition of *Robert's Rules of Order*.

ARTICLE 17: RESOLUTIONS

SECTION 1: DEVELOPING RESOLUTIONS

Resolutions formally express the opinion of the ASI Board of Directors as a whole. Resolutions may be authored by any ASI Board of Directors member but should be coordinated with the ASI Vice President of Student & University Affairs as stated in ARTICLE 10, Section 6.1.8.

SECTION 2: RESOLUTIONS APPROVALS

Resolutions must be reviewed and approved by the ASI Student Advocacy Committee prior to review and final approval by the ASI Board of Directors as stated in ARTICLE 19, Section 2.2.3.

ARTICLE 18: COMMITTEES

SECTION 1: COMMITTEE ESTABLISHMENT

During the term of office, the ASI President shall, with the approval of the ASI Board of Directors by a majority vote, have the authority to establish new Standing and Ad Hoc Committees necessary to assist the ASI Board of Directors in the governance of ASI. The ASI President may appoint a short-term work group or task force to assist ASI in accomplishing a specific goal or task. Each committee established by the ASI Board of Directors shall have a written charge statement describing its purpose and authority and other relevant information. Committees

having authority to act on behalf of the Board shall be composed exclusively of Board members.

SECTION 2: COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP AND SELECTION

Members of ASI committees shall be as follows:

- 2.1 Voting Members:
 - 2.1.1 The ASI Chair & Chief of Staff shall appoint members to each committee.
 - 2.1.2 Appointments to the ASI Elections Committee require approval by the ASI Board of Directors.
- 2.2 Advisors and Standing Representatives:
 - 2.2.1 Each committee will have at least one ASI professional staff advisor appointed by the ASI Executive Director, with the exceptions of the ASI Personnel Committee and ASI Elections Committee.
 - 2.2.2 Standing Representatives may also be included in committee membership based on recommendation from the Committee Chair, ASI Chair and Chief of Staff, or ASI Executive Director.

Jaelyn Freeman 5/7/20 1:51 PM
Deleted: 1

SECTION 3: COMMITTEE OFFICERS

The Officers of ASI Committees shall have the following responsibilities:

- 3.1 The Chair of any ASI Committee shall prepare and cause to be posted in accordance with the requirements of California Education Code section 89305.5, conduct meeting efficiently within the prescribed estimated time for the meeting, help foster participation during meetings, and all relevant information to be discussed and considered at the meetings to insure effective decisions are made and implemented. The Chair of an ASI Committee, excluding the ASI Board of Directors and ASI Executive Committee, shall only vote in the event of a tie.
- 3.2 If the Chair is unable to attend a meeting of an ASI Committee, the Vice Chair shall assume the responsibilities of the Chair.

SECTION 4: STANDING COMMITTEES

- 4.1 Standing Committees shall include but are not limited to the following: ASI Student Advocacy Committee, ASI Executive Committee, ASI Internal Operations Committee, ASI Sustainability Projects Committee, ASI Personnel Committee, ASI Elections Committee, and Joint Audit Committee.
- 4.2 Except as provided in these Bylaws, Standing Committees shall be advisory to the ASI Board of Directors and subject to the direction of the ASI Board of Directors.

SECTION 5: AD HOC COMMITTEES

- 5.1 Ad-Hoc Committees shall be advisory and subject to the direction of the ASI Board of Directors.

Jaelyn Freeman 5/7/20 1:51 PM
Deleted: 2

ARTICLE 19: STANDING COMMITTEES

SECTION 1: INTERNAL OPERATIONS COMMITTEE

- 1.1 The Internal Operations Committee shall consist of the following members:
 - 1.1.1 Voting Members:
 - 1.1.1.1 ASI Executive Vice President
 - 1.1.1.2 ASI President
 - 1.1.1.3 Four (4) members of the ASI Board of Directors
 - 1.1.1.4 Four (4) students at large
 - 1.1.2 Advisors:
 - 1.1.2.1 ASI Executive Director

- 1.1.2.2 ASI Professional Staff designated by the ASI Executive Director
- 1.1.2.3 University CFO or Designee

1.1.3 Officers:

- 1.1.3.1 The Chair of the Committee shall be the ASI Executive Vice President
- 1.1.3.2 The Vice Chair of the Committee shall be the ASI President

1.2 Internal Operations Committee Duties and Responsibilities:

- 1.2.1 Review proposed budgets for annual allocation process.
- 1.2.2 Make recommendations to the ASI Board of Directors regarding the ASI annual budget allocation.
- 1.2.3 Give consideration and attention to financial matters brought to the Internal Operations Committee, when appropriate.
- 1.2.4 Review and make recommendations to the ASI Board of Directors regarding changes greater than five percent (5%) to the current annual operating budget, including transfer of funds from corporate reserves.
- 1.2.5 May review ASI Resolutions prior to consideration by the ASI Student Advocacy Committee and/or the ASI Board of Directors.
- 1.2.6 Receive grievances or complaints brought against any elected or appointed member of the ASI Board of Directors. The ASI Internal Operations Committee shall review and respond to any such grievances and complaints and make a recommendation to the ASI Board of Directors for action.
 - 1.2.6.1 Any grievances brought against a member of the ASI Board of Directors member shall follow process set forth in ARTICLE 23, Section 8.3
 - 1.2.6.2 The Internal Operations Committee shall have no jurisdiction or authority regarding any grievance or complaint about the ASI elections and/or process. All grievances and complaints about the ASI elections process and candidates for office shall be directed to the ASI Elections Committee.
 - 1.2.6.3 Procedures for other grievances received are dependent upon nature of grievance.
- 1.2.7 Review and make recommendations to the ASI Board of Directors regarding significant changes in ASI programs and services, scope of operations, and space. These decisions shall take into consideration the overall impact to student access, availability, and use.

Jaelyn Freeman 5/7/20 1:52 PM
 Deleted: <#> -
 Jaelyn Freeman 5/7/20 1:52 PM
 Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 2 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 0" + Indent at: 0.31"

SECTION 2: STUDENT ADVOCACY COMMITTEE

- 2.1 The Student Advocacy Committee shall consist of the following members:
 - 2.1.1 Voting Members:
 - 2.1.1.1 All College Representatives
 - 2.1.1.2 All Student-at-Large Representatives
 - 2.1.1.3 Veterans Student Representative
 - 2.1.1.4 ASI Vice President of Student and University Affairs
 - 2.1.2 Advisors:
 - 2.1.2.1 CSUSM Dean of Students or designated representative
 - 2.1.2.2 ASI staff member designated by the ASI Executive Director
 - 2.1.3 Officers
 - 2.1.3.1 The Chair of the Committee shall be the ASI Vice President of Student and University Affairs
 - 2.1.3.2 The Vice Chair of the Committee shall be elected from the voting

membership of the Committee

- 2.2 Student Advocacy Committee Duties and Responsibilities:
 - 2.2.1 Shall identify and discuss concerns and issues impacting students at California State University San Marcos and within the California State University (CSU) system.
 - 2.2.2 Shall be informed of governmental, legislative, and political agenda items under consideration by the California State Student Association.
 - 2.2.3 Shall review ASI Resolutions prior to consideration by the ASI Board of Directors and make recommendations unless the ASI Board of Directors determines that the Resolution should not be considered by the Student Advocacy Committee. Resolutions may be brought straight to ASI Board of Directors only under time sensitive constraints and per Chair approval.
 - 2.2.4 May receive concerns brought by students against University processes and practices and may forward concerns to the ASI Board of Directors for consideration and/or action.

SECTION 3: PERSONNEL COMMITTEE

- 3.1 The Personnel Committee shall consist of the following members:
 - 3.1.1 Voting Members:
 - 3.1.1.1 ASI President
 - 3.1.1.2 ASI Executive Vice President
 - 3.1.1.3 ASI Vice President for Student and University Affairs
 - 3.1.1.4 ASI Chair and Chief of Staff
 - 3.1.2 Non-Voting Members:
 - 3.1.2.1 CSUSM Student Affairs Representative appointed by the Vice President of Student Affairs
 - 3.1.2.2 CSUSM Corporation Human Resources representative appointed by the CSUSM Corporation Director of Human Resources
 - 3.1.3 Officers
 - 3.1.3.1 The Chair of the Committee shall be the Chair & Chief of Staff
 - 3.1.3.2 The Vice Chair of the Committee shall be the ASI President
- 3.2 Personnel Committee Duties and Responsibilities:
 - 3.2.1 Oversees ASI's role in the procedure for the Annual ASI Board of Directors Review of the ASI Executive Director and/or appropriate ASI professional staff members as determined by the committee members. The reviews as identified herein shall be conducted in strict adherence to the confidentiality appropriate to personnel matters and in accordance with any applicable provisions in the California Corporations Code and/or the California Education Code.
 - 3.2.2 Ensures that student input and feedback regarding the performance of the ASI Executive Director and other ASI professional staff to be incorporated into evaluation process for inclusion in the MPP evaluation, annual evaluation, and/or personnel file, as appropriate.
 - 3.2.3 Ensures that the ASI Board of Directors members shall complete the evaluation prior to the end of their appointment.
 - 3.2.4 Establishes a timeline of review process.
 - 3.2.5 Analyzes all information received regarding the individual's performance and

prepare a written confidential report to be submitted in the staff's formal evaluation process. The report shall:

- 3.2.5.1 Summarize the committee's findings.
- 3.2.5.2 Comment on the Executive Director's and/or ASI professional staff achievements and performance.
- 3.2.5.3 Include recommendations with regard to the promotion, compensation level and overall employment status of the Executive Director. However, the Associate Vice President of Student Life retains final authority over a review of the ASI Executive Director and the ASI Executive Director retains final authority over a review of a member of his or her professional staff. For all ASI professional staff reviewed, their respective supervisor will determine goals and next steps in regard to promotion, compensation, and overall employment status. Notwithstanding the forgoing, the report(s) by the ASI Personnel Committee shall be presented to the ASI Board of Directors in a closed session for its review and approval unless the person who is being reviewed notifies the ASI Board of Directors' Chair that the review can be presented in a meeting open to the public.

3.2.6 Reviews and approves reclassifications of ASI employees, including authorizing changes in salary of no more than 15% of the employee's current salary.

SECTION 4: ASI ELECTIONS COMMITTEE

- 4.1 The ASI Elections Committee shall consist of the following members:
 - 4.1.1 Voting Members:
 - 4.1.1.1 Three (3) member of the ASI Board of Directors, who are not running for office in the current election cycle.
 - 4.1.1.2 Four (4) CSUSM students not affiliated with ASI, who are not running for office.
 - 4.1.2 Advisors
 - 4.1.2.1 Dean of Students or Designee
 - 4.1.2.2 Chief Diversity Officer and Associate Vice President, Inclusive Excellence or Designee.
 - 4.1.3 Standing Representatives
 - 4.1.3.1 ASI Executive Director or designee
 - 4.1.3.2 ASI Professional Staff as designated by the ASI Executive Director.
 - 4.1.4 Officers
 - 4.1.4.1 The Chair of the Committee shall be one of the ASI Board of Directors representatives as designated by the Chair & Chief of Staff.
 - 4.1.4.2 The Vice Chair of the Committee shall be elected from the voting membership of the Committee.
- 4.2 Elections Committee Duties and Responsibilities:
 - 4.2.1 Shall plan and oversee all elections of the ASI Board of Directors in compliance with the ASI Elections Packet, University Policies, and all laws and regulations of the State of California.
 - 4.2.2 Shall be responsible for advertising matters and issues surrounding elections, including but not limited to the application timeline, election dates, forums, and candidate meetings. Shall be responsible for coordinating and advertising elections.
 - 4.2.3 Shall ensure that candidates are informed of and adhere to policies and procedures set forth in the ASI Elections Packets.

Jaelyn Freeman 5/7/20 1:53 PM

Deleted: -

Jaelyn Freeman 5/7/20 1:54 PM

Deleted: -

Jaelyn Freeman 5/7/20 1:54 PM

Deleted: -

Jaelyn Freeman 5/7/20 1:54 PM

Deleted: -

Jaelyn Freeman 5/7/20 1:54 PM

Deleted: -

- 4.2.4 Have the capacity to determine consequences of a violation of the ASI Elections Packet. Consequences to a candidate, which may include removal of a candidate from the elections process, require a two-thirds (2/3) vote.
- 4.2.5 Have the responsibility to investigate the allegations of candidate misconduct in accordance with rules and procedures as may be established by the ASI Elections Committee that insure the process is fair, open, follows due process, and provides that the member under investigation is presumed innocent.
- 4.2.6 Shall publicly post the election results by noon on the Friday of elections week unless the ASI Elections Committee determines that there is an irregularity or other issue about an election that presents the posting of the elections results as set forth herein. If the ASI Elections Committee determines that there was or is an irregularity or other issue about an election which prevents the posting of results, those candidates impacted will be notified a minimum of 12 hours prior to the scheduled posting of results, if time allows. Irregularities and/or outstanding issues shall be resolved by the ASI Elections Committee and results posted as expediently as possible.
- 4.2.7 Shall be responsible for advertising and promoting voter turnout throughout the elections.
- 4.2.8 Shall receive any and all grievances, charges of misconduct or irregularities, appeals, or complaints brought against any candidates. The Committee shall review and respond to all grievances, charges of misconduct, irregularities, and complaints aforementioned.

SECTION 5: AWARDS COMMITTEE

5.1 The Awards Committee shall consist of the following members:

5.1.1 Voting Members:

- 5.1.1.1 ASI President
- 5.1.1.2 Two (2) additional members of the ASI Board of Directors
- 5.1.1.3 Three (3) CSUSM students not affiliated with ASI
- 5.1.1.4 One (1) ASI Professional staff representative designated by the Executive Director
- 5.1.1.5 One (1) University Student Union Professional Staff representative
- 5.1.1.6 One (1) University Student Life and Leadership Professional Staff representative
- 5.1.1.7 One (1) University Housing Professional Staff Representative
- 5.1.1.8 One (1) Campus Recreation Professional Staff Representative
- 5.1.1.9 One (1) Student Life Center for Identity, Inclusion and Empowerment Professional Staff Representative

5.1.2 Advisors

- 5.1.2.1 Two (2) ASI professional staff as designated by the ASI Executive Director

5.1.3 Officers

- 5.1.3.1 The Chair of the Committee shall be the ASI President
- 5.1.3.2 The Vice Chair of the Committee shall be elected from the voting membership of the Committee

5.2 The Awards Committee Duties and Responsibilities:

- 5.2.1 The Chair works with advisors to send to all recognized student organizations

Ashley Fennell 5/6/20 3:36 PM
Deleted: p

Ashley Fennell 5/6/20 3:36 PM
Deleted: s

Ashley Fennell 5/6/20 3:35 PM
Deleted: s

Ashley Fennell 5/6/20 3:38 PM
Formatted: Indent: Left: 1", Hanging: 1"

and ASI Board of Directors a letter of notification outlining award categories, the time and place the awards are to be presented, and a nomination form(s) for those to place nominations, unless otherwise stipulated in this code.

- 5.2.2 Student organization nominees shall be verified by University Student Life and Leadership to be in good standing academically and with no disciplinary action that would disqualify the person as a student at the University.
- 5.2.3 The committee shall take all nominations in consideration and shall make all final decisions regarding awards for the Tukwut Leadership Awards Night.
- 5.2.4 Assist with the implementation and execution of ASI Tukwut Leadership Awards Night (TLAN).
- 5.2.5 Awards shall be given with the utmost objectivity and fairness without regard to race, color, religion, sex, gender, age, national origin, ancestry, physical or mental disability, sexual orientation, marital status, veterans status, military status, political affiliation, or medical condition or other category protected by federal, state and local law.
- 5.2.6 All awards, titles, descriptions, and criteria shall be noted in a packet dispersed among members of the Awards Committee and others as necessary.

SECTION 6: SUSTAINABILITY PROJECTS COMMITTEE

6.1 The Sustainability Projects Committee shall consist of the following members:

6.1.1 Voting Members:

- 6.1.1.1 ASI Student At Large Representative for Sustainability
- 6.1.1.2 Two (2) CSUSM students at large not affiliated with ASI as designated by the Chair & Chief of Staff in conjunction with Sustainability Representative,
- 6.1.1.3 One (1) student representative selected from Environmental Studies Department.
- 6.1.1.4 One ASI Board of Directors member, as designated by the Chair and Chief of Staff

6.1.2 Advisors:

- 6.1.2.1 Sustainability Manager or designee, Office of Safety, Risk, and Sustainability.
- 6.1.2.2 One (1) ASI professional staff as designated by the ASI Executive Director.

6.1.3 Standing Representatives

- 6.1.3.1 One (1) staff member, Facility Services
- 6.1.3.2 One (1) staff member, Energy Management & Utility Services.
- 6.1.3.3 One (1) staff member, Planning, Design, & Construction.

6.1.4 Officers

- 6.1.4.1 The Chair of the Committee shall be the Student At large Representative for Sustainability. In the event that there is no Student At large Representative for Sustainability currently holding said office, the Chair of the Committee shall be appointed by the ASI President.
- 6.1.4.2 The Vice Chair of the Committee shall be the ASI Board members on the Committee.

6.2 Sustainability Projects Committee Duties and Responsibilities:

- 6.2.1 Determine goals for the allocation of funds.
- 6.2.2 Review project applications and determine allocation of funds.

Jaelyn Freeman 5/6/20 12:04 PM
Deleted: ASI President

Ashley Fennell 4/13/20 4:02 PM
Deleted: v

Ashley Fennell 4/13/20 4:02 PM
Deleted: selected by the members entitled to vote on the

- 6.2.3 Report on projects receiving funds.
- 6.2.4 Establish timeline of review process.
- 6.2.5 Determine if potential projects meet the requirements and goals of the Committee.
- 6.2.6 Report approved projects and totals to the ASI Board of Directors.
- 6.2.7 Submit approved projects to the ASI Executive Director for final approval.

SECTION 7: JOINT AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Joint Audit Committee ("the JAC") oversees internal financial control practices, corporate compliance activities, and outside auditors for the Boards of Directors of the California State University San Marcos Corporation ("CSUSM Corporation"), the California State University San Marcos Foundation ("Foundation") and Associated Students Inc. of California State University San Marcos ("ASI") respectively. JAC has been formed by formal action of each Board to gain time and effort efficiencies, reduce audit costs and take advantage of common audit attributes.

7.1 Joint Audit Committee Delegation of Authority and Responsibility

The CSUSM Corporation, Foundation, ASI have authorized the JAC to have the following authority:

- Review and assess the adequacy of the JAC charge statement and recommend changes to the respective Boards for joint approval.
- Participate in the selection or discharge of the external auditor.
- Review policies and procedures as needed for the purpose of assuring the adequacy of internal controls and financial operating procedures.
- Review the annual audited financial statements with the independent audit firm, including any issues encountered in conducting the audit and make a recommendation to the respective Boards.
- Review the annual exempt organization returns (IRS Forms 990/990T), prepared by the independent audit firm in conjunction with the annual financial audit and make recommendations to the respective Boards.
- Review and discuss any management letter or any communication letters provided by the outside auditor and responses provided by management.
- Report to the respective auxiliary Boards and make recommendations to the Boards periodically on matters within the Charge Statement.
- Call closed meetings to discuss with independent audit firm representatives or any member of management of the participating organizations as may be required under circumstances within the Charge Statement.
- Report to any or all of the respective Boards as circumstances may require, such matters as conflict of interest, private inurement or other insider transactions, the use of the organization's funds for illegal payment, and any other questionable practices that may come to the attention of JAC.
- Inform the respective Boards of developments in accounting principles that will affect the auxiliaries, as well as relevant rulings by the IRS and other regulatory bodies.

7.2 Joint Audit Committee Membership

The JAC will be composed of at least five members consisting of the following: Two (2) Board members appointed from and by each respective Board. Board chairs and treasurers (including CFOs) may not serve on the JAC.

The JAC may include additional respective Board members or persons who are non-Board members, as the JAC may determine. Each Board shall appoint JAC members for terms specified by each participating organization.

The JAC Chair shall be a CSUSM Corporation Board member appointed by the CSUSM Corporation Board Chair. The JAC Chair may not serve simultaneously as a finance committee member of an appointing Board.

No JAC member shall be a member of a finance committee of respective Board. The JAC will not include members of a participating organization or University staff, although staff members are permitted to attend meetings.

7.3 Joint Audit Committee Meetings

JAC meetings shall be conducted consistent with the open meeting law requirements of the respective Boards. The JAC may adopt implementing meeting procedures.

The JAC will meet at least three times each fiscal year: prior to audit work beginning, to receive the annual financial audit reports and to review tax returns. Additional meetings will be held as required.

At the end of each meeting, time will be provided in which the Committee may converse separately with audit firm representatives without the presence of staff.

ARTICLE 20: OATH OF OFFICE

SECTION 1: APPLICATION

The Oath of Office of ASI shall be affirmed by all ~~new~~ Associated Students, Inc. elected and appointed officials.

SECTION 2: OATH OF OFFICE

I, (full name), as duly elected or appointed (officer/representative) of Associated Students, Incorporated of California State University San Marcos, do affirm that I will faithfully execute the duties of this office as provided by the established Bylaws. I will strive to establish representative government, maintain academic freedom, and defend student rights. I will work toward the strengthening of the cooperation between the ASI Board of Directors and the University administration. I will strive to enhance my leadership qualities and academic success. With these thoughts in mind, I shall work toward the betterment of ASI and California State University San Marcos; I so affirm.

SECTION 3: ADMINISTRATION

The Oath shall be administered to the succeeding ASI President by the outgoing ASI President or CSUSM Vice President of Student Affairs or designee. After the incoming ASI President is sworn in, the ASI President shall then administer the Oath of Office to the newly elected members of the ASI Board of Directors. Special Officers and any appointed officers will be sworn in following the affirmative vote by the ASI Board of Directors on the presidential appointment(s).

ARTICLE 21: RATIFICATION AND AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS

SECTION 1: AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS BY ASI BOARD OF DIRECTORS

These Bylaws may be adopted by a two-third (2/3) vote of the ASI Board of Directors unless an amendment would materially and adversely affect the rights of ASI members as to voting or transfer which in said case the amendment shall require a majority vote of the valid votes cast in the election to adopt the amendment.

SECTION 2: PETITION TO AMEND BYLAWS BY MEMBERS

If a proposed amendment to the Bylaws is proposed by a member of the ASI, a petition shall contain a statement of purpose and be signed by not less than ten percent (10%) of the members of ASI. The petition must contain a printed name, signature, and student identification number of each petitioner. The petition shall be accepted upon the certification of status of the petitioners

as members of the ASI by impartial University personnel. The ASI Board of Directors shall, within a reasonable time of thirty to sixty (30 – 60) days, convene and call for an election for the purposes of considering the proposed amendment specified by the petition. Amendments to these Bylaws shall be ratified by the affirmative vote of a majority (50% + 1) of those votes cast in an election open to the membership of ASI.

ARTICLE 22: ELECTIONS

SECTION 1: GENERAL ELECTION

Scheduled annually for all Associated Students, Inc. elect~~ed~~ positions. Special issues, such as a fee referendum or amendments to the ASI Bylaws, may also be included in the general election. The general election is held annually during the spring term the week prior to spring break. If students are not in session due to university closure, alternate dates for the general election shall be determined by the ASI Elections Committee.

SECTION 2: SPECIAL ELECTION

An election called to determine special issues, including but not limited to fee referendum, recall elections, amendments to Bylaws, or to fill a vacancy of office. A special election may be called at the discretion of the ASI Board of Directors [in consultation with the ASI Elections Committee](#).

SECTION 3: RUN-OFF ELECTIONS

Follows a general or special election when a tie (equal votes) exists between candidates, or a tie regarding special issues. Run-off elections shall be held the second or third week after a general or special election.

SECTION 4: ELECTIONS REGULATIONS

The [ASI](#) Elections Committee is governed by the ASI Bylaws and approved ASI guidelines and packet. The ASI Elections Committee has authority to oversee the ASI Elections and complaint process. Specifics regarding the ASI Elections are stated in ASI Election Guidelines and packet.

SECTION 5: COLLEGE REPRESENTATION

Candidates for college-specific seats must have a declared major appropriate to that college as defined by the University at the time of submitting their election packet. In the event that a college representative of the ASI Board of Directors changes their major outside of the representing college, they shall no longer serve their term as a member of the ASI Board of Directors and shall resign. The Student Representative-at-Large positions may be filled by any active member pending eligibility requirements as stated in ARTICLE 8, Section 1.

ARTICLE 23: REFERENDUM

The referendum process enables the ASI Board of Directors to submit legislation affecting ASI to members for ratification and members must vote to approve. A majority vote of the ASI Board of Directors is required to place a referendum item on the ballot.

ARTICLE 24: RECALL AND REMOVAL OF BOARD MEMBERS

SECTION 1: RECALL

Members of ASI may seek to recall a member of the ASI Board of Directors by submitting a petition signed by ten percent (10%) of members eligible to cast votes for that particular office. The petition shall be submitted to the Chair of the ASI Elections Committee. If the Chairperson of the ASI Elections Committee is the member cited in the petition, the petition shall be submitted to the ASI Executive Director and the Chairperson must vacate their position as Chair.

SECTION 2: RECALL PETITION CONTENTS

A recall petition shall contain a statement of reason(s) for seeking the recall of a member of the

Jaelyn Freeman 3/25/20 2:55 PM

Deleted: ive

ASI Board of Directors. The petition must contain a printed name, signature, and student identification number of each petitioner. The petition will be accepted upon the certification that the petitioners are valid students and in good standing at California State University San Marcos as determined by impartial University personnel.

SECTION 3: RECALL ELECTION

A recall election shall be held not less than fifteen (15) or more than forty- five (45) calendar days after the filing of the petition. Shall the period fall within thirty (30) days of the last day of the semester, then the vote shall take place the following semester, following reaffirmation of the recall by the ASI Board of Directors.

SECTION 4: NOTIFICATION

Notice of any recall must be announced to the members of ASI at least twice prior to the recall election.

SECTION 5: BALLOTS

Ballots for a recall election shall list each name separately.

SECTION 6: VOTES

A two-thirds (2/3) majority of affirmative votes shall be required to remove a member of the ASI Board of Directors.

SECTION 7: VACANCY

In the event an ASI Board of Directors member is removed from office through a recall election, ARTICLE 13, Section 5 of these Bylaws shall be followed to fill the vacancy.

SECTION 8: REMOVAL BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The ASI Board of Directors shall have the authority to remove a member for cause provided that:

- 8.1 The cause is specified in these Bylaws and was in effect at the beginning of the member's term of office.
- 8.2 The cause is related to the eligibility requirements of the member to continue in office, breach of duties and responsibilities outlined in these Bylaws or the ASI Policy and Procedure, breach of any fiduciary duty, or failure to comply with any agreed policies (i.e. attendance policy). Members removed for failure to meet eligibility requirements in ARTICLE 8, Section 1 will be removed administratively and will not be subject to the removal process outlined
- 8.3 The action is done in good faith and in a fair and reasonable manner and conducted in accordance with the following practice:
 - 8.3.1 The allegations against a member of the ASI Board of Directors must be initiated in writing by any member of the ASI Board of Directors to the ASI President and/or ASI Executive Director.
 - 8.3.2 The accused member shall receive written notice of the special hearing of the ASI Internal Operations Committee at least seven (7) business days prior to the date set for the hearing. The notice of the hearing shall include an outline of the allegations against the member excluding the name of the initiator.
 - 8.3.3 The special hearing of the ASI Internal Operations Committee shall be conducted in open session and is subject to and must comply with the Gloria Romero Open Meetings Act of 2000 set out in the Education Code section 89305 et seq.
 - 8.3.4 The findings and any recommendations of the ASI Internal Operations Committee shall be presented in writing to the ASI Board of Directors for approval with a copy to the accused member.
 - 8.3.5 The ASI Board of Directors may remove a member as provided in these ASI Bylaws with the approval of two-thirds (2/3) of the ASI Board of Directors at a regular or special meeting.
 - 8.3.6 The accused member may present their case before the ASI Board of Directors, either orally or in written form.
 - 8.3.7 The decision by the ASI Board of Directors to remove a member is final.

ARTICLE 25: ASI EMPLOYEES AND FACILITIES

SECTION 1: BASIS

The Officers of the ASI Board of Directors shall be assisted in their duties and responsibilities by employees, including an Executive Director.

SECTION 2: PROVISIONS

ASI members shall not be employed as a Professional staff member. Salaries, working conditions, and benefits shall be set in accordance with the rules, regulations, and laws applicable to a person employed in the State of California.

SECTION 3: EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

The ASI Executive Director shall serve as the Chief Administrative Officer of the ASI and reports directly to the CSUSM Associate Vice President of Student Life. The Associate Vice President of Student Life has the authority to employ, evaluate, and dismiss the ASI Executive Director, in consultation with and approval by the ASI Board of Directors. The ASI Executive Director works closely with the ASI Officers and the ASI Board of Directors to help fulfill the Mission, Vision and Values of ASI.

ARTICLE 26: AUDIT

An audit of the official books of ASI shall take place annually within the requirements of the California State University system and California State University San Marcos. The audit will be conducted by an independent agency at the end of each fiscal year in accordance with applicable law and accounting standards. Additional audits may be approved by a two-thirds vote of the ASI Board of Directors.

ARTICLE 27: MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

SECTION 1: CORPORATE REQUIREMENTS

ASI, in all respects, shall conform to the requirements of the California State University system and California State University San Marcos.

SECTION 2: CORPORATE AFFILIATIONS

This Corporation shall not affiliate with any organization that participates in such discriminatory practices, or knowingly conducts business with any establishment that participates in such discriminatory practices.

SECTION 3: OTHER OPERATING REQUIREMENTS

All operating requirements outlined in these Bylaws, the ASI Articles of Incorporation, ASI Policies, or other instruments of the laws of the State of California shall not be in conflict.

ARTICLE 28: OVERSIGHT BY THE CSUSM PRESIDENT

The President of California State University San Marcos is responsible for the educational effectiveness, academic excellence, and general welfare of the University. As an auxiliary, student body organization at the University, ASI recognizes it is an integral part of the University and is subject to the supervision the University President as specified in the Auxiliary Organization Operating Agreement. ASI shall conduct its operation in accordance with the Auxiliary Organization Operating Agreement and any policies and procedures that may be established by the CSU Board of Trustees and the University President.

ARTICLE 29: DISSOLUTION

Upon dissolution of this corporation, net assets other than trust funds shall be distributed to a successor approved by the President of the campus and by the Chancellor. If, upon dissolution, this corporation holds any assets in trust, such assets shall be disposed of in such a manner as may be directed by decree of the Superior Court of the county in which this corporation's principal office is located upon petition therefor by the Attorney General or by any person concerned in the liquidation. In no event shall any assets be distributed to any member, director, or officer of this corporation.

ARTICLE 30: VIEWPOINT NEUTRALITY PRINCIPLES APPLICABLE TO REALLOCATION OF STUDENT FEES

All ASI decisions reallocating Student Association Fees for viewpoint expressive events shall be done in a viewpoint neutral way. Further details on the viewpoint neutral principles can be found within the "CSUSM-ASI Viewpoint Neutrality Policy and General Procedures." The Board of Directors of ASI shall adopt policies and procedures to ensure implementation of this standard.

Unknown

Field Code Changed

CERTIFICATION

I certify that on the _____ day of _____, 2020, the Board of Directors of the Associated Students, Inc. of California State University San Marcos adopted the above amended Bylaws with the written concurrence of the University President.

Kenny Tran, ASI President

BOD Reports 5.8.20

Name *	Nicholas Lavelly
Position on Board *	College of Science Technology Engineering and Mathematics
Highlights and successes related to your position (i.e. meetings, past events, new campus/community partners) *	N/A - Students are studying and preparing for finals. Many professors have been very receptive to easing up on their grading policies with students.
What ASI Committees are you currently sitting on? *	Elections Committee
Updates on ASI Committees: *	Having a final meeting 05/04/2020 to discuss changes for next years guidelines.
What University Committees are you currently sitting on? *	Student Grade Appeal Committee
Updates on University Committees *	Currently waiting on the response from a professor about a single case; We requested the syllabus and a statement from the instructor.
Other University committees you're sitting on, but are not listed above:	N/A
Upcoming Events and New Initiatives/Collaborations *	N/A
Areas of concern related to your position and its constituents. *	Currently we do not have any CSTEM representatives. It's my personal opinion that the success of these roles will come from when they have adequate time to prepare and understand their role.
Name *	Emily Borgeson
Position on Board *	CoBA Rep
Highlights and successes related to your position (i.e. meetings, past events, new campus/community partners) *	Nothing to report

What ASI Committees are you currently sitting on? *	Awards Committee Student Advocacy Committee
Updates on ASI Committees: *	Tukwut Awards on Friday!
What University Committees are you currently sitting on? *	Student Affairs Committee (SAC) Student Grievance Committee
Updates on University Committees *	None
Upcoming Events and New Initiatives/Collaborations *	None. ABOUT TO GRADUATE!!!!
Areas of concern related to your position and its constituents. *	None
Name *	Arianna Camino
Position on Board *	CSM Representative
Highlights and successes related to your position (i.e. meetings, past events, new campus/community partners) *	N/A
What ASI Committees are you currently sitting on? *	Awards Committee Student Advocacy Committee
Updates on ASI Committees: *	Reminder TLAN held this Friday 5/8 5:00PM!
What University Committees are you currently sitting on? *	Academic Policy Committee (APC) Student Fee Advisory Committee
Updates on University Committees *	On May 1st by a unanimous vote, David Barsky has been elected as APC Chair for the 2020-2021 academic year. The following APC policies have been scheduled for a second reading at Senate, Wednesday, May 6, 2020 APC Proposed Addendum to Resolution Calling for Temporary Modification of Academic Policies due to the COVID-19

Pandemic, AS 755-19

APC Undergraduate Catalog Rights Policy (APC 342-09)

Academic Calendars, 2021-2026

APC Inactive Courses Policy (APC 193-00)

Upcoming Events and New Initiatives/Collaborations None

*

Areas of concern related to your position and its constituents. *

None other than what has already been reported.

Name *

Tim Pelayo

Position on Board *

CoBA Rep.

Highlights and successes related to your position (i.e. meetings, past events, new campus/community partners) *

Nothing to report

What ASI Committees are you currently sitting on? *

Student Advocacy Committee

Updates on ASI Committees: *

Nothing to report

What University Committees are you currently sitting on? *

Academic Policy Committee (APC)
Disability Access & Compliance Committee (DACC)
Environmental Health, Occupational and Public Safety Committee

Updates on University Committees *

Nothing to report. APC chair election nominations and elections. APC 342-09 and 193-00 second reading at senate.

Other University committees you're sitting on, but are not listed above:

N/A

Upcoming Events and New Initiatives/Collaborations *

None

Areas of concern related to your position and its constituents. *

Ongoing COVID-19 crisis, directing them to respectable spaces on campus for support.

Name *

Shovan Vatandoust

Position on Board *

CHABSS Rep.

Highlights and successes related to your position (i.e. meetings, past events, new campus/community partners) *

On May 7th, 2020 I went to the ASI banquet on zoom and it was so awesome.

What ASI Committees are you currently sitting on? *

Student Advocacy Committee
Elections Committee

Updates on ASI Committees: *

None at this time

What University Committees are you currently sitting on? *

Disability Access & Compliance Committee (DACC)

Updates on University Committees *

None at this time

Other University committees you're sitting on, but are not listed above:

None at this time

Upcoming Events and New Initiatives/Collaborations *

None at this time

Areas of concern related to your position and its constituents. * None at this time

Name * Mariana Rosales

Position on Board * EVP

Highlights and successes related to your position (i.e. meetings, past events, new campus/community partners) *

- Reallocated Funds to SEF: A little over \$100k
- Last transition meeting with Tim on 5/8
- Graduates on Parade
- Gave final recommendations for CARES
- Biggest highlight: completing the year :D

What ASI Committees are you currently sitting on? * Internal Operations

Updates on ASI Committees: * Exec Committee
-Reallocated \$100,194 to SEF

What University Committees are you currently sitting on? * Student Fee Advisory Committee

Updates on University Committees * SFAC
-Have not met since last BOD meeting but introduced Rosa to Tim and Michael

Other University committees you're sitting on, but are not listed above:

Joint Audit Committee
-Have not met since last BOD

Student Emergency Subcommittee
-Met with the subcommittee that Cathy Baur created and it wasn't informative on my end but moreso for me to speak about SEF to everyone else.
-ONE CSUSM campaign to raise funds for student relief
- 10% to SEF
-Sent update to Tim

Common Read Committee
-Briefed Michael, Dylan and Ashley on the committee

since they will begin the planning process for their programming in Fall.

**Upcoming Events and
New
Initiatives/Collaborations**
*

N/A

**Areas of concern related
to your position and its
constituents.** *

I don't wanna run out of money for SEF :(

ASI Meeting Schedule 2020/2021

During COVID-19 ALL Committee Meetings will take place via Zoom unless otherwise indicated on posted agenda

Board of Directors	
Date	Time
Friday, August 21	2:30-4pm
Friday, September 4	2:30 - 4pm
Friday, September 18	2:30 - 4pm
Friday, October 2	2:30 - 4pm
Friday, October 16	2:30 - 4pm
Friday, November 6	2:30 - 4pm
Friday , November 20	2:30 - 4pm
Friday, December 11	2:30-4pm
Friday, January 22	2:30-4pm
Friday, February 5	2:30 - 4pm
Friday, February 19	2:30 - 4pm
Friday, March 5	2:30 - 4pm
Friday, March 19	2:30 - 4pm
Friday, April 2	2:30 - 4pm
Friday, April 16	2:30 - 4pm
Friday , May 7	2:30 - 4pm
Advisors: Ashley Fennell & Annie Macias	

Student Advocacy Committee	
Date	Time
Friday, September 25	2:30 - 4pm
Friday, October 23	2:30 - 4pm
Friday, December 4	2:30 - 4pm
Friday, January 29	2:30 - 4pm
Friday, February 26	2:30 - 4pm
Friday, April 23	2:30 - 4pm
Advisors: Jason Schreiber & Ashley Fennell	

Internal Operations	
Date	Time
Friday, September 11	2:30 - 4pm
Friday, October 9	2:30 - 4pm
Friday, November 13	2:30 - 4pm
Friday, February 12	2:30 - 4pm
Friday, March 12	2:30 - 4pm
Friday, April 9	2:30 - 4pm
Advisors: Annie Macias, Sara Veth, and Jon Epes	

Executive Committee	
Date	Time
TBD	TBD
* Schedule dependent upon committee availability	
Advisors: Ashley Fennell & Annie Macias	

Elections Committee*	
Date	Time
TBD	TBD
* Schedule dependent upon committee availability	
Advisors: DOS Representative and OIE Representative	

BOD Professional/Personal Development		
Date	Time	Topic
8/7/20 - 8/10/20	TBD	CSUnity
8/18/20 - 8/21/20	TBD	BOD Training
8/24/20 - 8/26/20	TBD	ASI Retreat
Friday, September 4	4-5:30	TBD
Friday, October 2	4-5:30	TBD
Friday, November 6	4-5:30	TBD
Friday, December 11	3:00-5:00	TBD
Wednesday, January 20	All Day	ASI Retreat
Saturday, January 16	All Day	BOD Mid-Year Retreat
Friday, February 5	4-5:30	TBD
Friday, March 5	4-5:30	TBD
Friday, April 2	4-5:30	TBD
Advisor: Ashley Fennell		

Awards Committee*	
Date	Time
TBD	TBD
* Schedule dependent upon committee availability	
Advisors: Ashley Fennell & Kalie Sabajo	

Personnel Committee*	
Date	Time
TBD	TBD
* Schedule dependent upon committee availability	
Advisors: Alan Brian & Michelle Hinojosa	